
 

3/17/2017 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AGENDA #939 
 

DATE:  March 21, 2017 
 
PLACE: Oak Park High School Presentation Room – G-9  
  899 N. Kanan Road, Oak Park, CA 91377 
 
TIME:  5:00 p.m. Closed Session – G9  

6:00 p.m. Open Session – G9 
 
The Mission of the Oak Park Unified School District is to provide students with a strong foundation 
for learning, which meets the challenge of the present and of the future through a balanced 
education, that includes academic achievement, personal growth and social responsibility. 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Drew Hazelton, President 

Derek Ross, Vice President 
Denise Helfstein, Clerk  

 Barbara Laifman, Member 
Allen Rosen, Member 

Meghan Cleary, Student Board Member 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                              Educating Compassionate and Creative Global Citizens 
 

ADMINISTRATION 
 

Dr. Anthony W. Knight, Superintendent 
Ragini Aggarwal, Executive Assistant 

Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business & Administrative Services 
Dr. Leslie Heilbron, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 

Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director Curriculum and Instruction 
Enoch Kwok, Director, Educational Technology & Information Systems 

Susan Roberts, Director, Pupil Services 
Cliff Moore, Consultant 

 
COPY OF ENTIRE AGENDA ON WEB SITE  

www.opusd.org 
 

http://www.opusd.org/


 

3/17/2017 

INDIVIDUALS WHO REQUIRE SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN A 
BOARD MEETING, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO AN AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE 
INTERPRETER, ACCESSIBLE SEATING OR DOCUMENTATION IN ACCESSIBLE 
FORMATS, SHOULD CONTACT THE SUPERINTENDENT’S OFFICE 72 HOURS PRIOR TO 
THE MEETING TO ENABLE THE DISTRICT TO MAKE REASONABLE ARRANGEMENTS 
TO ENSURE ACCOMODATION AND ACCESSIBILITY TO THIS MEETING.   PHONE (818) 
735-3206 OR FAX (818) 879-0372 or e-mail: raggarwal@opusd.org 
 
Welcome to a meeting of the Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education.  Routine items 
are placed under the Consent Calendar and are approved by a single vote of the Board.  When the 
agenda is adopted, a member of the Board may pull an item from the Consent Calendar and transfer 
the item to an appropriate place on the agenda for discussion. 
 
The President of the Board shall inquire if there is anyone in the audience who desires to address the 
board with respect to any items appearing on the closed session agenda, regular session agenda, or on 
any issue within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Governing Board.  The speaker cards are 
available in the Board Room and must be completed and handed to Ragini Aggarwal, Executive 
Assistant, prior to the beginning of the meeting.  All comments for either agenda items or non-agenda 
items must be limited to three minutes or less.  In order to ensure that non-English speakers receive 
the same opportunity to directly address the Board, any member of the public who utilizes a translator 
shall be provided at least twice the allotted time to address the Board, unless simultaneous translation 
equipment is used to allow the Board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously. 
(Government Code 54954.3) 
 
Your comments are greatly appreciated. However, the Board cannot enter into a formal discussion at 
this time, nor can a decision be made.  Matters warranting discussion will be placed on a future 
agenda.  The information on the speaker card is voluntary but will assist the Board President in 
conducting the meeting.  Thank you for your cooperation and compliance with these guidelines 

 

All Board Actions and Discussion are electronically recorded and maintained for thirty days.  

Interested parties may review the recording upon request. 

Agenda and supporting documents are available for review prior to the meeting at the District 

Office located at 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377 

 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, April 18, 2017 
Closed Session at 5:00 p.m.           Open Session at 6:00 p.m. 

Oak Park High School, Presentation Room, G9 
AGENDA IS POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS IN OAK PARK: 

                 District Office, 5801 East Conifer St.   
Brookside Elementary School, 165 N. Satinwood Ave. 

Oak Hills Elementary School, 1010 N. Kanan Rd. 
Red Oak Elementary School, 4857 Rockfield St. 

Medea Creek Middle School, 1002 Double Tree Rd 
Oak Park High School, 899 N. Kanan Rd. 

Oak View High School, 5701 East Conifer St 
Oak Park Library, 899 N. Kanan Rd. 

Internet Home Page:  http://www.opusd.org/ 
 

mailto:mailto:raggarwal@opusd.org
http://www.opusd.org/


 

3/17/2017 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
AGENDA – REGULAR BOARD MEETING #939 

March 21, 2017 
 

CALL TO ORDER – Followed by Public Comments/5:00 p.m.   
CLOSED SESSION: 5:00 p.m.  
OPEN SESSION: 6:00 p.m. 
 
The Oak Park Unified School District Board of Education will meet in Regular Session at the Oak 
Park High School Presentation Room – G-9, Oak Park, California. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER: _______ p.m. 
  
II. PUBLIC SPEAKERS – CLOSED SESSION AGENDA ITEMS 
 
III. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION ON THE 
FOLLOWING ITEMS: 

 
A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
      Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 
 
B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT : Instructional Assistants II Sp Ed, 

Custodian Sub, Campus Supervisor Sub, Food Service Sub  
 

C.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:  
      Agency designated representatives: Leslie Heilbron and Martin Klauss 

        Employee organizations:  Oak Park Teachers Association and Oak Park Classified    
                  Association 
 
IV: CALL TO ORDER – RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION AT:  ________ p.m. 
 

A. ROLL CALL  
 

B. FLAG SALUTE 
 

C. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS TAKEN  
 

D. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
V. PUBLIC SPEAKERS:  SPEAKERS ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
VI. OPEN COMMUNICATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 

A. BOARD REPORTS/DISCUSSION/COMMUNICATIONS 
1. Presentation to Oak Park High School Girls Volleyball Team – Coastal Canyon League 

Champions  
2. Presentation of Certificates of Recognition to OPHS Boys Basketball Team - – Coastal 

Canyon League Champions  
3. Presentation of Certificates of Recognition to Oak Park High School Students Sumedha 

Attanti and Madeleine Phillips 2017 NCWIT Aspirations in Computing award recipients 



 

3/17/2017 

4. Presentation of Robotics Grant by College of the Canyons   
5. Remarks from Board Members 
6. Remarks from Student Board Member  
7. Remarks from Superintendent 
8. Report from School Site Councils 
9. Report from Oak Park Education Foundation   
10. Report from Oak Park Municipal Advisory Committee  
11. Discussion and Updates on District of Choice 

 
B. BUSINESS SESSION: 

1. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Consent items shall be items of a routine nature or items for which no Board discussion is 

anticipated and for which the Superintendent recommends approval. 
 

 At the request of any member of the Board, any item on the Consent Agenda shall be removed 

and given individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item. 

a. Approve Minutes of Regular Board Meeting February 21, 2017 
b. Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL23349-01CL23358 & 01CE08195-

01CE08219 
c. Approve Purchase Orders – February 1-28, 2017  

Board Policy 3300 requires Board approval of Purchase Orders 

d. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park Unified School District Odyssey of the Mind 
Teams to Attend State Competition – March 24-25, 2017  
Board Policy 6153 requires Board approval for student overnight trips 

e. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Future Business Leaders of 
America (FBLA) Leadership Summit – April 6-9, 2017 
Board Policy 6153 requires Board approval for student overnight trips 

f. Approve Notice of Completion, Project 16-07F, Construction of School Garden at 
Medea Creek Middle School  

        Board approval required for Notice of Completion 

 
 ACTION 

2. BUSINESS SERVICES 
a. Approve Adoption of Resolution #17-10, Participation in CSBA California School 

Cash Reserve Program 
Board approval required to approve Resolution to participate in TRAN 

b. Approve Renewal of Joint-Use Agreement with Rancho Simi Recreation and Park 
District for 2017-2020  

                    Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

c. Approve Certification of 2016-17 Second Interim Financial Report and Budget 
Revisions 
Board approval required for Certification of Second Interim Budget Revisions 

d. Approve 2016-17 Safe School Plans  
Board approval required annually for Safe School Plans 

e. Approve Agreement for Measure S Architectural Services  
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

f. Approve Change Order No. 1, Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation  
Board approval required for change orders 
 



 

3/17/2017 

g. Approve Agreement for Testing and Inspection Services – Project 17-01S, 
Districtwide Solar Installation 
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

h. Approve Agreement for DSA Inspector of Record Services – Project 17-01S, 
Districtwide Solar Installation  

       Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

i. Approve Measure R Construction Contracts, Project 14-16R, Districtwide School 
Signage – Oak Park Independent and Oak View High Schools, and District 
Administrative Office  
Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

j. Approve Modifications to the Facility Use Agreement with Westlake-Agoura Girls 
Softball Association 

       Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

k. Approve Measure R Construction Contract, Project 17-04R, Emergency Sidewalk 
Repairs at Brookside Elementary School  
Board approval required for purchases made from Measure R Bond Fund 

l. Ratify Measure R Construction Contract, Project 17-05R, Emergency Sidewalk 
Repairs at Oak Hills Elementary School 
Board approval required for purchases made from Measure R Bond Fund 

m. Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase – Districtwide Emergency 
Radio System Upgrades  
Board approval required for purchases made from Measure C6 Bond Fund 

n. Approve Donations 
  Board approval required for donations 

 
            3.  PUPIL SERVICES 

  a. Approve Contract for Non-Public School Services for Special Education Student  
   #13-16/17 - $13,503.20 

Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

  b. Approve Contract for Non-Public School for Special Education Student #14-   
                                    16/17 - $11,400.00 

Board Policy 3312 requires Board approval for contracts for services 

 
 4.   CURRICULUM   
            a.   Approve New Course for Oak Park High School – Aerospace Engineering 

       Board approval required for changes to programs 

  b.   Approve 2016-17 Single Plans for Student Achievement 
 Board approval required for Single Plans for Student Achievement 

 c.   Approve 2015-2016 School Accountability Report Cards (SARCs) 
      Board approval required for 2015-2016 School Accountability Report Cards  

  
5.   BOARD POLICIES 
 a.   Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9240 –  Board Training - Second Reading 

      Board Bylaw retitled and updated to address the purposes and importance of board training, 

recommended topics of training for new and first-term board members, and the district's process 
for selecting board training activities. The bylaw also reinforces the prohibition against a 

majority of the board members discussing district business of a specific nature while attending a 

conference or similar public gathering. 
 

 
 



 

3/17/2017 

 b.   Adopt New Administrative Regulation AR 3311.2 –  Lease-Leaseback Contracts –  
                  First Reading 

New administrative regulation includes material formerly in BP/AR 3311 - Bids pertaining to 

requirements for awarding lease-leaseback contracts. Material significantly revised to reflect 

NEW LAW (AB 2316, 2016) which no longer permits the selection of a lease-leaseback 
contractor without advertising, and instead requires districts to use a comprehensive "best 

value" selection process.  

 c.   Adopt New Administrative Regulation AR 3311.3 –  Design-Build Contracts –  
                  First Reading 

New regulation includes material formerly in BP/AR 3311 - Bids pertaining to requirements for 

awarding design-build contracts. Minor editorial changes made to clarify the process and more 

directly reflect law.  

 d.   Adopt New Administrative Regulation AR 3311.4 –  Procurement of Technological     
                  Equipment – First Reading 

New regulation includes material formerly in BP/AR 3311 - Bids pertaining to requirements for 

the "competitive negotiation" process authorized for procurement of computers, software, 
telecommunications equipment, microwave equipment, or other related electronic equipment 

and apparatus. 

 e.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy BP 5111 –  Admission – First Reading 
Board Policy revised to add language to allow all children equal access to education, regardless 
of immigration status 

f.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation BP/AR   
      5111.1 –  District Residency – First Reading 

Policy Updated to add language to allow all children equal access to education, regardless of 

immigration status. Administrative Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1455, 2016) 
which establishes residency within the district for enrollment purposes to students whose 

parent/guardian is transferred or pending transfer into a military installation within district 
boundaries. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 2537, 2016) which indefinitely extends district 

authority to grant Allen Bill transfers for students whose parent/guardian is employed within 

district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school week. 
  

VII INFORMATION ITEMS 
1. Monthly Enrollment and Attendance Report 
2. Monthly Cash Flow Report 
3. UCP Complaint #1 – Failure to calculate “Chronic absenteeism rate” per EC 52060 

(d)(5)(B) 
4. UCP Complaint #2 – Failure to review, assess and specify actions per EC 52061(2) 

 
VIII. OPEN DISCUSSION 
 
IX. ADJOURNMENT: 
        There being no further business before this Board, the meeting is declare adjourned at ____ p.m. 
 
X. SCHOOL REPORTS/SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Brookside Elementary School Report  
2. Oak Hills Elementary School Report  
3. Red Oak Elementary School Report  
4. Medea Creek Middle School Report   
5. Oak Park High School Report   
6. Oak View High School/Oak Park Independent School   
7. Oak Park Neighborhood School  



 

MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING    2-21-17         #938 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, called the regular meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. at 
Oak Park High School Presentation Room, G9, 899 N. Kanan Road, Oak Park. 
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mr. Drew Hazelton, President, Mr. Derek Ross, Vice President, Ms. Denise Helfstein, Clerk, Ms. Barbara 
Laifman, Member, and Mr. Allen Rosen, Member 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
Board President Drew Hazelton reported that in Closed Session the Board would be discussing:  
 

• PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
• PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT: Student Worker – Food Service, Health Tech Sub, 

Campus Supervisor Sub, Custodial Subs, Instructional Assistant 1 Reading, Instructional 
Assistant II Special Ed, Instructional Assistant II Special Ed Sub, Instructional Assistant II 
Special Ed Sub – Temp, Instructional Assistants III Behavior, Guest Teachers, Interim Principal, 
Construction Manager  

• CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS:  
      Agency designated representatives: Leslie Heilbron and Martin Klauss 
      Employee organizations:  Oak Park Teachers Association and Oak Park Classified Association 

 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein the Board of Education adjourned to closed 
session at 5:04 pm. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/MEETING PLACE 
The Board of Education President, Mr. Drew Hazelton, called the regular meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. at 
the Oak Park High School Presentation Room, G9, 899 N. Kanan Road, Oak Park. 
 
BOARD PRESENT 
Mr. Drew Hazelton, President, Mr. Derek Ross, Vice President, Ms. Denise Helfstein, Clerk, Ms. Barbara 
Laifman, Member, Mr. Allen Rosen, Member, and Meghan Cleary, Student Board Member.  
 
BOARD ABSENT 
NONE  
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Dr. Tony Knight, Superintendent, Mr. Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services, Dr. 
Leslie Heilbron, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources, Dr. Jay Greenlinger, Director of 
Curriculum and Instruction, Mr. Cliff Moore, Consultant, and Mrs. Ragini Aggarwal, Executive 
Assistant. 
  
FLAG SALUTE 
Kevin Buchanan led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 



 

 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
Dr. Knight reported that in closed session the Board took no action.  
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein the Board of Education adopted the agenda as 
presented. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0. 
 
PUBLIC SPEAKERS 
None  
 
PRESENTATIONS 
The Board recognized the Oak Park High School Academic Decathlon Team and their Coaches on their 
great showing and their qualification for state at the Ventura County Academic Decathlon competition.   
The Board presented the Partners in Education Award to Brenna Gutell for her outstanding volunteer 
contributions to the district.  
 
REPORT FROM BOARD MEMBERS  
Board Member Barbara Laifman reported that she attended the DELAC meeting, Super Saturday, and the 
Community Outreach Committee meeting. Barbara reported that there is a hike planned for March 5th in 
honor of Women’s history month. She also reported that the EEAC has a new logo and that they have a 
great speaker scheduled for Earth Week.  
 
Board Member Derek Ross, thanked Brenna for all her great ideas and for her positive energy at the 
various district committee meetings.  
 
Board Member Denise Helfstein reported that she attended the Gate Meeting and the Neighborhood 
School meeting with Dr. Knight and Kim Gregorchuk. Denise expressed how saddened she was by the 
anti-Semitic hate messages that were left within the community, and how proud she was of our District 
staff and schools for keeping student safety a priority.  
 
Board Member Allen Rosen reported that he attended Super Saturday and the Oak Park MAC meeting. 
He also reported that the open seats on the Oak Park MAC and Rancho Simi and Park District were filled, 
and that the MAC was looking at expanding the routes for the Kanan shuttle. In addition, he stated that 
the MAC was also looking to start Volunteers in Policing for Oak Park in a couple of months. Rosen 
reported that Jana Orkney is retiring from public life. Rosen also attended the swearing in ceremony of 
Senator Henry Stern, and was pleased to see the Oak Park Marching Band perform at the event.  
 
Board Member Drew Hazelton reported that he attended Super Saturday and the Safe Kids Task Force 
meeting.  
 
Student Board Member Meghan Cleary reported that the OPHS ASB held a successful rally, blood drive, 
and Vice Dance. The ASB members also attended a Leadership conference. Cleary also visited the 
Middle School ASB to encourage them to be involved and to offer her assistance. Cleary mentioned that 
she is having difficulty getting students interested in running for the Student Board Member position. In 
an attempt to boost involvement at the high school she is going to write an article in the Talon newspaper, 
and film a video for social media.  
 
Superintendent Tony Knight reported that there wasn’t much damage done by the recent storm, except for 
some water damage in the lower lying areas of the district office.  None of the schools reported any water 



 

damage to the classrooms. Dr. Knight reported that the Solar project planning is going well, and that the 
solar proposals will go to DSA for approval on March 2nd and 3rd. Dr. Knight invited members of the 
public to attend the Solar project meeting tomorrow evening at 6:30 pm in G9  
 
REPORT FROM SCHOOL SITE COUNCILS 
The Board received School Site Council reports from Oak Park Neighborhood School, Oak Hills 
Elementary School, Red Oak Elementary School, and Oak Park High School.  
 
REPORT FROM OAK PARK EDUCATION FOUNDATION 
Ryan Rosen reported that the Oak Park Education Foundation was brainstorming ideas for fundraising 
and was looking for new members. The Education Foundation would be running summer school again 
this year, the information will be going live on February 28 on their website.  
 
DISTRICT OF CHOICE UPDATE 
Dr. Knight stated that Assembly member Jacqui Irwin has proposed AB 1087 on District of Choice: it is 
one of four bills related to the extension of the District of Choice program. He feels it is a strong and 
comprehensive bill. Dr. Knight stated that Oak Park USD would be working with other DOC districts to 
lobby in favor of the bill.  
 
PRESENTATION ON CALIFORNIA’S NEW ACCOUNTABILITY DASHBOARD 
Dr. Jay Greenlinger presented the new Dashboard accountability program.  
 
B.1. CONSENT AGENDA 
On motion of Allen Rosen seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved the Consent 
Agenda. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No - 0.  
 

a. Approve Minutes of Special Board Meeting January 12, 2017 and Regular Board 
Meeting January 17, 2017 

b. Public Employee/Employment Changes 01CL23314-01CL23348 & 01CE08166-
01CE08194 

c. Approve Purchase Orders –January 1-31, 2017  
d. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Athletic Teams to Attend Winter 

CIF Play-offs 
e. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Future Business Leaders of 

America (FBLA) Team Member – March 9-10, 2017 
f. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Boys’ Volleyball Team – March 10-

12, 2017  
g. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School’s Health Occupational Students of 

America Club Members – March 16-19, 2017 
h. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Technology Students Association 

Club – March 25-26, 2017 
i. Approve Overnight Trip for Oak Park High School Athletic Teams to Attend Spring 

CIF Play-offs 
j. Approve Renewal Agreement for Audit Services 

 
B2. BUSINESS SERVICES 
 

a.    Approve Projected Enrollment of New Inter District Students for 2017-2018 
On motion of Denise Helfstein, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education 
approved the Projected Enrollment of New Inter District Students for 2017-2018. Motion 



 

carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
b.    Approve Resolution #17-03 - 2017 Oak Park Schools Education Foundation to  
       Offer Fee Based Summer School Program 

On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved 
Resolution #17-03 - 2017 Oak Park Schools Education Foundation to Offer Fee Based 
Summer School Program. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross.  
No – 0 

c.    Approve Resolution #17-04, Authorizing the Issuance of Oak Park Unified School  
       District (Ventura County, California) Election of 2016 General Obligation Bonds,  
       Series A, and Actions Related Thereto 

On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved 
Resolution #17-04, Authorizing the Issuance of Oak Park Unified School District (Ventura 
County, California) Election of 2016 General Obligation Bonds, Series A, and Actions 
Related Thereto. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

             d.   Approve Reimbursement Resolution #17-05, Declaring District Intent to Advance  
                   Funds for Measure S Projects, to be Reimbursed Upon Issuance of Measure S  
                   Tax-Exempt General Obligation Bonds 

On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Drew Hazelton, the Board of Education approved 
Reimbursement Resolution #17-05, Declaring District Intent to Advance Funds for Measure 
S Projects, to be Reimbursed Upon Issuance of Measure S Tax-Exempt General Obligation 
Bonds. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

             e.    Approve Process for Recruitment and Appointment of Oak Park Citizens’  
                    Oversight Committee Members for 2017-18 Term 

On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education 
approved Process for Recruitment and Appointment of Oak Park Citizens Oversight 
Committee Members for 2017-18 Term with the change to move up the required qualification 
for the committee to page one of the application. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, 
Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
 
On Motion of Drew Hazelton, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education agreed to 
move up item B4.a. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0   

      B4.a.  Approve Revised Physical Education Requirements for Oak Park High School 
       On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved  
                   the revised Physical Education Requirements for Oak Park High School. This revised 

Physical Education Requirement will expand the exemption for ninth grade students from 
attending courses of physical education to include Marching Band, Cheerleading Team, and 
Dance Team to be given credit in lieu of ninth grade PE. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, 
Helfstein,Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

              f.    Authorize Project to be Funded from Bond Measures R and C6 –Art Court at Oak      
                   Park High School 

On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education authorized 
Project to be Funded from Bond Measures R and C6 – Art Court at Oak Park High School. 
Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

 g.   Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Purchase – Physical Education and Athletic       
                   Safety Equipment for Oak Park High School 

On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved 
Measure C6 Bond Fund Purchase – Physical Education and Athletic Safety Equipment for 
Oak Park High School. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross.  
No – 0 

 h.   Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase - LCD Projector Refresh   



 

                  Program for 2016-17 School Year 
On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved 
Measure C6 Bond Fund Equipment Purchase - LCD Projector Refresh Program for 2016-17 
School Year. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0  

i. Approve Measure C6 Bond Fund Classroom Technology Equipment Purchase –  
                    Project 17-04C, Chromebook Carts for Oak Park High 
                    On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Barbara Laifman, the Board of Education approved  
                    Measure C6 Bond Fund Classroom Technology Equipment Purchase – Project 17-04C,  
                    Chromebook Carts for Oak Park High. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman,   
                    Rosen, Ross. No – 0 

  
 3.   HUMAN RESOURCES  
  a.   Approve Resolution Number 17-06, Resolution Regarding Non-Reelection and Release  
  from Employment of Temporary Certificated Employees 
       On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved   
                   the recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 17-06 to initiate non-reelection and release of   
                   certificated temporary employees pursuant to Education Code section 44954. Motion carried  
                   Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
  b.  Approve Resolution Number 17-07, Determination of Seniority Among Certificated    
                   Employees with Same Seniority Date 
                   On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved  
                  the recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 17-07 to establish the process for determining  
                  seniority among certificated employees who first rendered probationary service to the District  
                  on the same day, pursuant to Education Code section 44955. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton,   
                  Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
  c.  Approve Resolution Number 17-08, Resolution of Intention to Reduce Particular Kinds 
                   of Services and Release Certificated Employees 
      On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education  
      approved the recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 17-08 to initiate certificated employee  
                  reduction in services pursuant to Education Code sections 44949 and 44955. Motion carried   
                  Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
             d.  Approve Resolution Number 17-09, Resolution of Release and Reassignment of 

Certificated Administrative Employee 
      On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved  
                  the recommendation to adopt Resolution No. 17-09 to initiate release and reassignment of  
                  certificated administrative employee pursuant to Education Code section 44951 
                  Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
 
            4.  CURRICULUM  

 b.  Discuss Development of 2017-18 Local Control Accountability Plan 
       The Board held a discussion on the development of 2017-18 Local Control Accountability  
                   Plan 
 
            5.   BOARD 
      a.   Approve Date Changes for June Board Meetings 

       On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Denise Helfstein, the Board of Education opted to 
keep the dates already approved for the June Board Meetings. The Budget Study Session will 
be held as scheduled on June 12 and the Regular June Board Meeting will be on June 19.  

        Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No – 0 
 b.   Approve 2017 CSBA Delegate Assembly Election of Candidates 



 

       On motion of Derek Ross, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education voted for the 
        two incumbents Christina Urias (Santa Paula USD) and John Walker(Ventura USD) for the 

2017 Delegate Assembly ballot. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Helfstein, Rosen, Ross.   
       No – 0. Board member Barbara Laifman recused herself due to a remote interest as she is an 
       employee of CSBA. 
 

Board Member Denise Helfstein left the meeting at 9:20 pm.   
 
B3.   BOARD POLICIES 

a. Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9323 Meeting Conduct - First Reading     
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Allen Rosen, the Board of Education approved  

    the amendment to Board Bylaw 9232 – Meeting Conduct as First and Final Reading. Motion  
    carried Aye: Hazelton, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No: 0. Absent: 1. 

 b.   Approve Amendment to Board Bylaw 9240 Board Training – First Reading 
    On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved the   
    first reading of the amendment to Board Bylaw 9240 – Board Training. The Board asked the  
    staff to bring back the Board Bylaw 9240 Board Training with suggested changes for second  

       reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Rosen, Ross. No: 0. Absent: Helfstein. Board     
       member Barbara Laifman recused herself due to a remote interest as she is an employee of 

CSBA. 
 c.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1312.3 –   

                  Uniform Complaint Procedures – First Reading 
    On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Allen Rosen the Board of Education approved  
    the amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 1312.3 – Uniform Complaint  
    Procedures as First and Final Reading with Option 1. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton,      
    Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No: 0. Absent: Denise Helfstein. 

 d.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation  
            4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 – Sexual Harassment - First Reading 

    On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved  
    Amendment to Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 –  
    Sexual Harassment as First and Final Reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Laifman,  
    Rosen, Ross. No: 0. Absent: Denise Helfstein. 

 e.   Approve Amendment to Board Policy 6142.4 – Service Learning/Community  
            Service Classes -First Reading 

   On motion of Allen Rosen, seconded by Derek Ross, the Board of Education approved the  
   amendment to Board Policy 6142.4 Service Learning/Community Service Classes as First  
   and Final Reading. Motion carried Aye: Hazelton, Laifman, Rosen, Ross. No: 0. Absent:   
   Denise Helfstein.  

 
On motion of Barbara Laifman, seconded by Drew Hazelton there being no further business before this 
Board, the Regular meeting is declared adjourned at 9:49 p.m.    
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      President of the Board 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Date                                                                      Clerk or Secretary of the Board 



FROM:            DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT

DATE: MARCH 21, 2017

Subject APPROVE CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE SUPERINTENDENT

ISSUE: B.1.b. APPROVAL/RATIFICATION OF CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL ACTIONS

AUTHORIZATION TO HIRE

Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site

CL23349 Margaret Veregge Instructional Assistant II SpEd 2/27/2017 Special Ed $16.59 BES

CL23350 Lorna West Instructional Assistant II SpEd 2/27/2017 Special Ed $16.59 BES

CL23351 Francisco Meza Morales Custodian Sub 2/22/2017 General $18.59 DO
CL23352 Ana Landeros Campus Supervisor Sub 2/22/2017 General $16.70 DO
CL23353 Ana Landeros Food Service Sub 2/22/2017 Food Service $14.41 DO

AUTHORIZATION TO PAY STIPEND

Number Name Position Start Date Fund Salary Site

IN-SERVICE CHANGE

Number Name Change Effective Date Fund Salary Site

CL23354 Niki Osborne Food Service Assistant I Site Change from OPHS to BES 2/1/2017 Food Service $17.06 BES

CL23355 Jacquie Morris Instructional Assistant I Grade to IA I Math Increase in hrs. 2/27/2017 General $16.23 BES

CL23356 Rogelia Soto-Alevo From Food Service Sub to Food Service Cook 3/7/2017 Food Service $16.68 OPHS

SEPARATION

Number Name Position Effective Date Separation Type Salary Site

CL23357 Patricia Colabella Campus Supervisor 3/1/2017 Resignation $16.70 MCMS

CL23358 Margaret Veregge Instructional Assistant II SpEd 3/6/2017 Special Ed $16.59 BES

Prepared by:                                                                                         Respectfully Submitted,

Leslie Heilbron Assistant Superintendent /Human Resources

 __________________________________

Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D.

Superintendent

Classified Changes 2016-2017.xlsx Page 1 of 1 3/8/2017 10:57 AM



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, Superintendent  
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.b. APPROVE CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL ACTIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE  
 SUPERINTENDENT  

CONSENT 
 
AUTHORIZATION TO EMPLOY 

Number Name Classification Start Date Fund Site/Grade 
      
 
AUTHORIZATION TO PAY STIPEND  

Number Name Assignment Effective Fund Amount Site 
01CE08195 Samantha Lyons 1st semester class size overage 1st semester General 80.00 OPIS 
01CE08196 Victor Anderson Mock Trial Club 8/9/16-5/10/17 PFA 1000.00 OPHS 
01CE08197 Alexis Allison ASB Class Advisor 2016-2017 ASB 500.00 OPHS 
01CE08198 Kellie Gross ASB Class Advisor 2016-2017 ASB 500.00 OPHS 
01CE08199 Eric Pryor ASB Class Advisor 2016-2017 ASB 500.00 OPHS 
01CE08200 Todd Creason ASB Class Advisor 2016-2017 ASB 500.00 OPHS 
01CE08201 Roland Herberg Study Hall - Spring 2016-2017 LCPI 1725.00 OPHS 
01CE08202 Brenda Pasqua Study Hall - Spring 2016-2017 LCPI 1725.00 OPHS 
01CE08203 Tony Peluce Study Hall - Spring 2016-2017 LCPI 1725.00 OPHS 
01CE08204 Kathie Rohlfs Study Hall - Spring 2016-2017 LCPI 1725.00 OPHS 
01CE08205 Erik Amerikaner Robotics Club 2016-2017 VCI 500.00 OPHS 
01CE08206 Erik Amerikaner Robotics Club 2016-2017 PFA 500.00 OPHS 
01CE08207 Erik Amerikaner Webmaster 2016-2017 Site 1350.00 OPHS 
01CE08208 Robin Midiri ACA DECA Club 2016-2017 PFA 1000.00 OPHS 
01CE08209 Russ Peters GBB Game Mgmt 11/22/16-2/8/17 ASB 1156.00 OPHS 
 
IN-SERVICE CHANGE 

Number Name Change Effective Fund Site 
01CE08210 Rachelle Crone Baby Bonding Leave 2/20-5/22/2017 General MCMS 
01CE08211 Sarah Landis Medical Leave 4/11-4/24/17 General BES 
01CE08212 Michelle Varju 1.0 FTE to .5 FTE (.5 LOA) 2017-2018 General BES 
01CE08213 Becky Koch 1.0 FTE to .5 FTE (.5 LOA) 2017-2018 General BES 
01CE08214 Alison Stein 1.0 FTE to .8 FTE (resigned .2) 2017-2018 General  MCMS 
01CE08215 Chris Henderson 1.0 FTE to .8 FTE (resigned .2) 2017-2018 General OPHS 
 
SEPARATION 

Number Name Position Separation Effective Date Site 
01CE08216 Christine Sharma Elementary Teacher Resignation 2/20/2017 ROES 
01CE08217 Kevin Smith  Secondary Teacher Retirement 5/26/2017 OPHS 
01CE08218 Shawn Williams Sp Ed Teacher Retirement 5/26/2017 MCMS 
01CE08219 Lynette Hiday Sp Ed Teacher Resignation 5/26/2017 OPNS 
 
Prepared by: Respectfully Submitted, 
Leslie Heilbron, Ed.D. 
Assistant Superintendent, HR                                              
 _______________________________ 
        Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
        Superintendent 



AdmSvs/Board//B.1.c.1. Monthly PO Report 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.c.      APPROVE PURCHASE ORDERS – FEBRUARY 1 THROUGH 28, 2017 

CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the purchase orders issued for the period February 1 

through 28, 2017? 
 
BACKGROUND: Included is the Purchase Order Report listing all purchase orders issued during 

the reporting period. All purchase orders have been approved by an 
administrator as a necessary expense and are budgeted for and within the budget 
authorization of the account. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the attached Purchase Order Report as submitted. 
 2. Do not approve the Purchase Order Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



Parent of Special Ed Student







TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:     B.1.d.  APPROVE OVERNIGHT TRIP FOR OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL 

DISTRICT ODYSSEY OF THE MIND TEAMS -  MARCH 24-25, 2017 
 
                                        CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve an overnight field trip for the OPUSD Odyssey of the 

Mind Teams? 
 
BACKGROUND: OPUSD STEAM Specialist, Debbie Hammill, requests approval for four OPUSD 

Odyssey of the Mind Teams for an overnight travel to Brentwood CA for the State 
Tournament. There are four teams which have qualified for the state tournament. 1 
Red Oak Elementary School Team comprised of 5 students with volunteer 
approved parent coach. 2 Medea Creek Middle School Teams with 13 students and 
three volunteer approved parent coaches (two of which are district staff and 
credentialed teachers). 1 Oak Park High School Team with 5 students with a 
volunteer approved parent coach. All students will be traveling with their parents or 
a parent with district approved driver clearance. Families will be leaving Friday 
morning March 24 and stay overnight in local hotels. Families will be covering the 
cost of all expenses related to the tournament. Debbie Hammill will attend the 
event and has verified that all the required components of the approved Field Trip 
Planning Guide/Checklist have been met. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve field trip as presented. 
   2.  Do not approve field trip as presented. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1. 
  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:     B.1.e.  APPROVE OVERNIGHT TRIP FOR OAK PARK HIGH SCHOOL 

FUTURE BUSINESS LEADERS OF AMERICA -  APRIL 6-9, 2017 
 
                                        CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve an overnight field trip for the OPHS FBLA Leadership 

Summit? 
 
BACKGROUND: Principal, Kevin Buchanan, requests approval for OPHS students to attend an 

FBLA overnight trip on April 6-9, 2017. Approximately 19 students and 2 FBLA 
club teacher advisors will travel to Sacramento. They will travel either by air or by 
district approved vehicles/drivers. Both advisors and students will depart on 
Thursday morning, April 6th and return by 4:30 p.m. on Sunday, April 9th. They 
will be staying at one of the CA FBLA approved hotels in the area (Hyatt Regency, 
Sheraton Grand, Residence Inn, Best Western or Holiday Inn Express). Student 
members will be rooming with multiple other members from the Oak Park H.S. 
FBLA chapter, with all boarding, activities, and tasks completed under solidified 
groups of four or more OPHS FBLA chapter members. Cost per student is 
approximately $300. Accept this as certification that the Principal has reviewed and 
verified that all the required components of the approved Field Trip Planning 
Guide/Checklist have been met. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve field trip as presented. 
   2.  Do not approve field trip as presented. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1. 
  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 
 



AdmSvs\Board\B.1.f. NOC Project 16-07F MCMS Garden 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 17, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.1.f. APPROVE NOTICE OF COMPLETION, PROJECT 16-07F, CONSTRUCTION 

OF SCHOOL GARDEN AT MEDEA CREEK MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 CONSENT 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a notice of completion for Project 16-07F, Construction of 

School Garden at Medea Creek Middle School? 
 
BACKGROUND: At its meeting on August 16, 2016, the Board of Education ratified a contract with 

Landscape Development, Inc., for Project 16-07F, Construction of School Garden 
at Medea Creek Middle School.  Long a Board goal to establish school gardens, 
and also a goal of the Medea Creek Middle School (MCMS) and its Parent-Faculty 
Association (PFA), the project was funded by a combination MCMS PFA 
donations and one-time discretionary funds, and included in the 2016-17 Local 
Control Accountability Plan (LCAP). 

  
 The work under this contract is now complete, and the District’s staff has inspected 

the finished project and is satisfied that it has been completed in compliance with 
contract specifications.  It is recommended that the Board approve a Notice of 
Completion accepting the finished project. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the Notice of Completion for Project 16-07F, Construction of School 

Garden at Medea Creek Middle School, contracted with Landscape Development, 
Inc. 

 2. Do not approve the Notice of Completion. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
______________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          

  



AdmSvs\Board\B.1.f. NOC Project 16-07F MCMS Garden 03 21 17.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Completion 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Oak Park Unified School District, a school district in Ventura County, is the owner 
in fee of the following described and real property, to-wit: 
 
Description: Medea Creek Middle School, 1002 Doubletree Road, Oak Park, CA 91377 

 
That on or about August 16, 2016 the said Oak Park Unified School District of Ventura County entered into a 
contract with Landscape Development, Inc. of Valencia, California, for Project 16-07F, Construction of School 
Garden at Medea Creek Middle School, on certain real property hereinbefore described: that said building and 
improvements were actually completed on March 21, 2017: that the address of said Oak Park Unified School District 
is 5801 Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377, Ventura County, California. 
 

OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
By Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent, Secretary to the Oak 
Park Unified School District Board of Trustees 

 
Anthony W. Knight, being first duly sworn, deposes and says: that he is secretary of the Board of Trustees of the 
Oak Park Unified School District, a school district of Ventura County, California: that he therefore verifies the 
foregoing Notice of Completion on behalf of said Oak Park Unified School District: that the Oak Park Unified 
School District of Ventura County, California is owner of the property described in the foregoing notice: that he has 
read the foregoing notice and knows the contents thereof: that he has personal knowledge of the facts therein stated: 
that the same are true. 
 

       
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D., Superintendent  

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA Oak Park Unified School District 
COUNTY OF VENTURA 
 
On ______________________________________________ before me, Shannan Kaesberg, Notary Public, 
personally appeared Anthony W. Knight, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) 
whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the 
same in his/her/their capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or entity 
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is 
true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
Signature ________________________________  (SEAL) 



AdmSvs\Board\TRAN 2017-18 03 21 17.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.a.           ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 17-10, PARTICIPATION IN CSBA 

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL CASH RESERVE PROGRAM 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board adopt Resolution No. 17-10 for participation in the Cash Reserve 

Program sponsored by the California School Boards Association (CSBA) Finance 
Corporation? 

 
BACKGROUND: Through its participation in the CSBA Cash Reserve Program, the District will be 

able to address its 2017-18 cash flow needs through a tax and revenue anticipation 
note (TRAN) as part of this cost-effective pooled structure.  CSBA Cash Reserve 
Program is now in its 30th year. In the 2016-17 fiscal year, over 200 school districts, 
community college districts, and county offices of education were involved in the 
issuance of more than $1.5 billion of notes issued through the Program. It is 
recommended that the Board adopt Resolution No. 17-10, allowing administration 
to proceed to the next step in the process and take part in this beneficial cash program 
for schools. As a reminder, the District is not obligated to participate as a result of 
resolution adoption. The Resolution simply delegates to the administration the right 
to decide on participation at the time of pricing when the interest cost and 
reinvestment rates are known. 

 
A summary of the CSBA Cash Reserve Program appears on the following pages.  
The full text of Resolution No. 17-10 may be accessed at the following link:  
https://goo.gl/7Bk5oP 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Adopt Resolution No. 17-10 authorizing borrowing of funds for fiscal year 2017-

2018, the sale of one or two series of 2017-2018 Tax and Revenue Anticipation 
Note(s), participation in the California School Cash Reserve Program; and 
requesting the Board of Supervisors to issue and sell said note(s). 

 2. Do not adopt Resolution No. 17-10. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1. 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 

 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Hazelton          

Helfstein          

Laifman          

Rosen          

Ross          
Student Rep          

https://goo.gl/7Bk5oP


CALIFORNIA SCHOOL CASH RESERVE PROGRAM 
Sponsored by CSBA Finance Corporation 

 
Board Agenda Item Description 

 
 
By passing the resolution before the Board, our District will have the opportunity to participate 
in the California School Cash Reserve Program sponsored by California School Boards 
Association Finance Corporation.  The Program consistently issues TRANs for more than half 
of all California school districts, community college districts, and county offices of education 
that issue TRANs.  The 2017-2018 Program will be the 30th year of the Program. 
 
Through participation in the Cash Reserve Program, our District will be able to issue a tax and 
revenue anticipation note as part of this cost-effective pooled structure.  An overview of this 
cash management concept and the Program is provided below: 
 

Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANs):  TRANs are short-term debt instruments 
issued by school districts throughout the State to create an additional reserve to the 
general fund.  In our District, this reserve will act as a cushion to the general fund in 
the event that we experience temporary cash flow needs.  These cash flow needs may 
occur as a result of the timing mismatch between the receipt of revenues (generally 
received in an uneven fashion) and the expenditure of general fund moneys (generally 
paid out in a more level fashion). 
  
TRANs Economics:  Through our participation in the Program, our District will issue a 
tax-exempt note.  The proceeds from the sale of this note, while not needed for cash 
flow, are invested in a taxable investment.  This may result in a positive spread 
between the borrowing rate and the investment return on the TRAN proceeds. 
 
Cash Reserve Program Background:  The first Cash Reserve Program was issued in 
June of 1988 for six districts with an aggregate issue amount of $9.6 million.  Since that 
time the Program has grown dramatically in size, servicing the majority of California 
school district TRAN issuers.  Each year the Program has resulted in a significant 
benefit to the participants.  The highlights of the Program are as follows: 
 
w Participants benefit from a cost-effective and administratively simple method to 

issue their TRANs 
 
w Documentation is streamlined for governing board approval 
 
w Participants benefit from year-round administrative assistance 
 



Board Agenda Item Description 
Page Two 

 
 
 
Cash Reserve Program Process: 
The Cash Reserve Program involves the following key steps in order to participate: 
 
1. Adoption of Resolution:  Adoption of the resolution does not obligate the District 

to participate in the Program.  The resolution simply delegates to the administration 
the right to decide on participation. 

 
2. Cash Flow and Credit Background Process:  Participants submit a completed credit 

questionnaire and financial information (including audits, budget, and second 
period interim cash flow report) that is used to develop an initial pro-forma cash 
flow statement for 2017-2018.  Participants review, revise, and approve their cash 
flow statement in consultation with Dale Scott & Company, the Program’s Finacial 
Advisor.  The cash flows are reviewed by Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe, the 
Program’s Bond Counsel.  

 
3. Sale of TRANs:  The pricing of the issue is anticipated to occur in mid June.  At that 

time the interest rate on the notes will be locked-in.  Our District is not obligated to 
participate until it acknowledges issuance after the sale of the TRANs. 

 
4. Closing:  Closing of the issue will occur in early July.  Our District will have access 

to the proceeds of the TRAN available to meet our temporary cash flow needs. 
  
We recommend that the Board adopt the resolution.  This will allow administration to 
proceed to the next step in the process and take part in this beneficial Program for 
schools.  Once again, our District is not obligated to participate as a result of resolution 
adoption.  The Resolution simply delegates to the administration the right to decide on 
participation prior to the time of TRAN issuance. 



   

2017-18 FISCAL YEAR 
CALIFORNIA SCHOOL CASH RESERVE PROGRAM 

 Issuance Process 
 
 

 

Step 1 Resolution Adoption 
February 2017 – April 2017 

District’s Board adopts program documents and sends 
signature pages to Dale Scott & Company.  

 

Step 2 Document Preparation 
March 2017 – April 2017 

Send required financial reports to Dale Scott & 
Company:  

1. Audited financial statements for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2014, 2015, and 2016  

2. 2016-17 Second Interim Report (SACS dat file) & 
second Interim cash flow (SACS dat file or Excel) 

3. Final 2015-16 cash flow 

 

Step 3 Cash Flow Projection 
May 2017 

Dale Scott & Company assists school districts with the 
preparation of cash flows for individual district TRAN 
sizing. These cash flows are reviewed by Orrick, 
Herrington & Sutcliffe, the program’s Bond Counsel. 

 

Step 4 Pricing 
June 2017 

District’s administration approves all aspects of the 
pricing including the interest rate on the notes, the 
investment of proceeds and the final costs of issuance. 

 

Step 5 Closing 
July 2017 

Funds are wired into the district's sub-account held by 
the Trustee and are invested per the district's 
instructions. Proceeds begin earning interest from the 
date of closing. 

 

Step 6 Access Note Proceeds 
July 2017 – June 2018 

Districts access note proceeds for cash flow purposes 
until final set aside payment is due under the note. 

 

 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.b.1. RSRPD Joint Use Agreement 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.b.          APPROVE RENEWAL OF JOINT-USE AGREEMENT WITH 

RANCHO SIMI RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT FOR 2017-2020 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve the renewal of the joint-use agreement with Rancho 

Simi Recreation and Park District (RSRPD) for the period of 2017-20? 
 
BACKGROUND: The District’s current joint-use agreement with RSRPD expired February 28, 

2017.  The long standing agreement has been mutually beneficial to the 
respective parties and it is therefore appropriate that the District enter into a 
renewal agreement with a three-year term and an expiration date of February 28, 
2020.  Unchanged from the previous agreement save for the term, a copy of the 
proposed renewal agreement follows for the Board’s information and review. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the renewal agreement for Joint-Use of Facilities between the 

District and Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District for the period 2017-
2020. 

2. Do not approve the agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

AND THE 
RANCHO SIMI RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 

FOR USE OF FACILITIES 
 

Term March 1, 2014 to February 28, 2017  

 

 This agreement is made and entered into the date hereinafter set forth by and between the OAK PARK 

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as “School District” and the RANCHO SIMI 

RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT, hereinafter referred to as “Park District.” 

 WHEREAS, each school in the Oak Park Unified School District is designated as a community center; and 

 WHEREAS, the citizens of Oak Park are dedicated to the integration of community activities; and  

 WHEREAS, the master plan for the Oak Park community emphasizes the shared use of school and park 

facilities by their location, and 

 WHEREAS, the California Education Code and California Public Resources Code provide for cooperative 

use of School District and Park District facilities, and it has been a long standing policy of the Park District to make 

its facilities available for school use and to use School District facilities for park use, when such use can be of 

benefit to residents of the entities involved; and  

 WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the Oak Park Unified School District and the Board of Directors of 

the Rancho Simi Recreation and Park District have determined that it would be in the public interest to enter into an 

agreement for cooperative use of facilities owned by them; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, conditions, provisions, agreements, obligations 

assumed, and the other considerations contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 1. Use of Park District Facilities:  The Park District hereby grants to the School District a non exclusive 

permit to use the buildings, grounds, and facilities of the Park District for programs and activities of the School 

District, so long as such activities do not interfere with or adversely affect programs and activities sponsored by the 

Park District.  Exceptions to this provision may be made in order to provide exclusive use of selected areas of Park 

District facilities on a case-by-case basis subject to the approval of the Park District Manager or appropriate 

designee. 

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
Term March 1, 2017 through February 28, 2020

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  2 
 
 

 

 2. Use of School District Facilities:  The School District hereby grants to the Park District a non 

exclusive permit to use the buildings, grounds, and facilities of the School District for programs and activities of the 

Park District, so long as such activities do not interfere with or adversely affect programs and activities sponsored by 

the School District.  Exceptions to this provision may be made in order to provide exclusive use of selected areas of 

School District facilities on a case-by-case basis subject to the approval of the School District Superintendent or 

appropriate designee. 

 3. Compliance:  The School District agrees to comply with all Policies, Procedures, Rules and 

Regulations applicable to the use of buildings, grounds, and facilities owned by the Park District.  Conversely the 

Park District agrees to comply with all Policies, Procedures, Rules and Regulations applicable to the use of 

buildings, grounds and facilities owned by the School District.  This provision will also apply to all groups and 

organizations whose use of facilities is sponsored by either entity. 

 4. Scheduling of Use:  The School District and Park District shall each designate an individual who 

shall be responsible for coordination of the scheduling of use of facilities under this agreement.  All requests for use 

of School District facilities shall be routed through the Park District representative to the School District 

representative for consideration and scheduling.  Similarly, all requests for use of Park District facilities shall be 

routed through the School District representative to the Park District representative for consideration and scheduling.  

All such requests for use of facilities shall be processed as promptly as this can reasonably be accomplished.  When 

a use of facilities by one agency has been approved by the other agency, that use shall not be canceled or modified 

except when the agency owning such facilities determines that such cancellation or modification is in the best 

interest of its programs and activities. 

 5. Charges for Use:  The using District shall compensate the owner District for direct costs incurred by 

the owner District resulting from or associated with the use of buildings, grounds and facilities under this agreement, 

such as the costs of utilities and expendable supplies resulting from such use and the costs of personnel for custodial 

care, maintenance, and supervision of use resulting from use by the using District.  A one-time charge may be made 

for processing a request for use of facilities.  When such use involves the payment of fees or other charges by 

participants in programs for which the facilities will be used, the owner District shall be entitled to establish 



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  3 
 
 

 

appropriate use fees.  If the owner District establishes such use fees, it shall so advise the using District of those use 

fees sufficiently far in advance of the proposed use to enable the using District to determine whether or not to 

proceed with the program involved prior to the time it would be necessary to advertise or promote the program.  At 

such times as shall be convenient to either party, but no less frequently than the last day of June and December of 

each year, each District shall submit to the other District a statement of charges incurred as a result of use of 

facilities under this agreement.  The charges incurred by each District shall be payable to the other District within a 

period of sixty (60) days following the period for which such charges were incurred.  As an alternative to the 

assessment of fees between the two parties, either District may compensate the other through the reciprocal use of its 

facilities in lieu of fee payment.  This alternative shall be affected in an equitable manner and is subject to the 

approval of both parties. 

 6. Supervision and Control of Use:  The supervision and control of Park District programs and 

activities on school grounds, buildings, and facilities under this agreement shall be the responsibility of the Park 

District.  The supervision and control of School District programs and activities on park grounds, buildings, and 

facilities under this agreement shall be the responsibility of the School District.  All use of buildings, grounds, and 

facilities under this agreement shall be supervised by the District using same through the services of responsible 

individuals who shall be familiar with the programs of the parties and the arrangements which have been made by 

the parties for the use of such buildings, grounds, and facilities.  It is specifically understood that it may be necessary 

for either District to provide personnel to supervise the use by the other District of buildings, grounds, or facilities 

under this agreement.  If the owner District determines that it will be necessary for it to supervise the use by the 

other District of buildings, grounds, or facilities under this agreement, the owner District shall so advise the using 

District at the time the owner District grants the using District permission to use its buildings, grounds, or facilities.  

At that time the owner District shall also advise the using District of the charges which will be made by the owner 

District for such supervision of use.  Each District may also elect to monitor use by the other District under this 

agreement to insure that such use shall be consistent with this agreement and the public interest.  During all use 

under this agreement, the using District and all individuals engaged in its programs and activities shall respect and 



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  4 
 
 

 

comply with the rules and regulations of the owning District and the reasonable directions and requests of the 

owning District's representatives. 

 7. Care and Repair of Property:  The School District and the Park District, and their employees, agents, 

and representatives shall exercise appropriate care in the use of all buildings, grounds, and facilities under this 

agreement.  Further, during such times as buildings, grounds, and facilities are being used under this agreement; the 

using District shall endeavor to restrain persons not affiliated with the using District from committing any waste or 

damage to the property so used and to buildings, grounds, and facilities in proximity to those actually being used.  In 

the event buildings, grounds, or facilities are damaged or destroyed during use under this agreement, the using 

District shall immediately reimburse the owner District for such costs as shall be incurred in repairing said damage 

and restoring the property to its condition prior to said use and damage.  As an alternative to reimbursement, the 

using District may, if this is acceptable to the owner District in the specific instance involved, actually repair the 

damage resulting from such use to the satisfaction of the owner District.  The using District shall not be responsible 

to the owner District for reasonable wear and tear resulting from such use. 

 8. Modification of Property:  Neither District shall modify or alter in any way the buildings, grounds, 

or facilities of the other District without the specific written authorization of the owner District.  The using District 

may, with owner District approval, place on the buildings, grounds, and facilities of the owner District such 

reasonable and temporary decorations and displays as may be appropriate to such use.  All such decorations and 

displays shall be placed in such a manner that their use shall not result in damage or detriment to the property of the 

owner District.  All such decorations and displays shall be removed promptly after completion of the use for which 

they were intended. 

 9. Expendable Equipment and Supplies:  Each District shall supply and furnish such expendable 

equipment and supplies as shall be necessary to conduct its programs and activities.  It is specifically understood that 

this agreement shall not extend to the use of expendable equipment and supplies. 

 10. Non-Liability for Loss/Insurance:  This agreement is made upon the express condition that the 

District permitting the use of its buildings, grounds, and facilities by the other District shall be free from all liability 

and claim for damages by reason of any injury to persons or property resulting from or associated with the use of 



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  5 
 
 

 

such buildings, grounds, and facilities by the other District.  The using District hereby assumes all risk of damage to 

persons and property in or upon the buildings, grounds, and facilities which are the subject of this agreement during 

such time as said buildings, grounds, and facilities shall be used under this agreement, from any cause or source 

whatsoever, and the using District, and all others using said buildings, grounds, and facilities under this agreement 

hereby waive any and all claims against the owner District for damage to persons or property in, on, or about said 

buildings, grounds, and  facilities.  The using District shall hold the owner District harmless from any and all claims, 

demands, causes of action, suits, damages, costs of action, counsel fees, and all other costs and expenses, including 

costs of investigation arising out of or incurred in the defense of any claim, proceeding, or action bought for injury 

to persons or damage to property resulting from or associated with the use of said buildings, grounds, and facilities 

under this agreement.  Further, the using District shall save and hold harmless the owner District from any and all 

orders, judgments, and decrees, which may be entered in such suits or actions.  In order to protect each other from 

liability and loss in this regard, the parties shall each secure, carry, and maintain at all times during the term of this 

agreement, at their sole cost and expense, public liability and property damage insurance for the joint and several 

protection and indemnity of both Districts.  Said insurance shall be in the principal amount of not less than one 

million dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limits, as to injury to persons and/or damage to property for a single 

occurrence.  Each District shall provide to the other District evidence of required insurance in the form of a 

"Certificate of Insurance" which shall provide that the other District shall be notified at least forty-five (45) days in 

advance of termination or cancellation of said insurance.  In addition, each District shall provide to the other District 

a "Policy Endorsement Form" naming the other District as an additional insured. 

 11. Notices:  All notices to be given under this agreement shall be in writing and shall be effective either 

upon personal delivery or upon being sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to 

the party to whom such notice is given.  Notice sent as above shall be deemed served forty-eight (48) hours after 

being deposited in the United States mail and issuance of a registered or certified mail receipt.  Notice shall be 

delivered or mailed to the principal office of each District. 

 12. Oak Park High School Tennis Courts   The tennis courts located on the Oak Park High School 

campus serve both an important school purpose and an important public recreation purpose.  These provisions are 



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  6 
 
 

 

meant to prevent any conflict in use for these purposes, and also indicate specific maintenance and other 

responsibilities with regard specifically to the tennis courts.  The following table lists regularly scheduled approved 

school use of the high school tennis courts.  Additional school uses may be scheduled, as stated below.  The tennis 

courts shall be available for public recreational purposes at all other times, as determined by the Park District.  When 

all or some of the tennis courts are not being used by the School District in accordance with this schedule, they shall 

be available for public recreational purposes, as provided by the Park District.  The “Dates” below are based upon 

the start and end dates of the regular school year, and will therefore vary slightly from year to year.  Each year the 

School District will provide to the Park District the actual school year star and end dates, so that both agencies can 

adjust accordingly.  

 

Dates Time Days of Week Number of Courts User 

August 20 – June 15 

August 11-June 1 
(2016-2017 School Year) 

1:30 pm – 6:30 pm Weekdays All Courts School 

June 16 – July 26  

June 1 – July 16 
(2016-2017 School Year) 

3:30 pm – 6:30 pm Weekdays All Courts School 

Year-round 6:30 pm – 9:00 pm Weekdays One Court School 

Year-round 9:00 am – 6:00 pm Saturday& Sunday One Court School 

a. The school use times indicated above may include coaching by the School District’s 

tennis coaches, however, the age of the kids being coached must be between 13 – 19 

years old.  If those being coached are under or over these ages, the use will not be 

considered a school use and instead be considered private lessons.  Unless approved by 

the Park District in writing, private lessons during public recreational use of the tennis 

courts are prohibited.  Any person violating this restriction may be warned and/or cited 

by the Park District’s Park Rangers.  



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  7 
 
 

 

b. During the times that the School District is using only one court it shall make best efforts 

to use court number 1 to help provide predictability to recreational tennis players. 

c. A schedule showing the School District’s scheduled uses shall be posted in a visible 

location at the tennis courts, so that the public may readily determine when the tennis 

courts are available. 

d. All or some of the tennis courts may also be needed at other special times, for school 

sponsored make-up games, tournaments, or other required California Interscholastic 

Federation (CIF) needs.  The School District will make reasonable effort to notify the 

Park District of these special uses 30 days prior to the special use so and the Park District 

will make reasonable effort to reschedule any program that may be in conflict with the 

School District’s special use.  School fund raising tournaments are expected to occur 2-3 

times per year and will likely occur on a Friday from 4 pm – 8 pm, and on a Saturday and 

Sunday from 10 am – 5 pm. 

e. The School District and its tennis coaches will make best efforts to end practices and 

instruction based upon the times stated in the table above, and would definitely stop 

immediately if there was a public need for the courts.  If no such immediate public need 

exists, School District and School District tennis coach use will be completed within 15 – 

20 minutes of the stated time frames.    

f. RSRPD reserves the right to charge appropriate fees for use of the courts by non-school 

groups and/or individuals.  Such fees shall be used either in whole or in part to offset the 

costs of utilities and ongoing maintenance of the facility.  RSRPD shall be responsible for 

all costs of electrical service to the facility (subject to an offset for electricity costs 

associated with lighting any or all tennis courts used by the School), lamp replacement 

and electrical repairs to the facility.  RSRPD shall wash all tennis courts once per month 

and replace tennis court nets and center straps as necessary.  OPUSD shall blow off 

courts as necessary, spot clean spills and empty trash containers as necessary.  Large-



Facilities Use Agreement 
Oak Park and Rancho Simi 
Page  8 
 
 

 

scale maintenance projects such as court resurfacing, painting, and repair/replacement of 

windscreens, fencing, or other fixtures shall be funded jointly by RSRPD and OPUSD on 

an equal basis. 

g. Due to the composition of the court surfaces, and in an effort to avoid excessive 

maintenance costs, “high-impact” activities such as roller hockey and the use of remote 

controlled vehicles are prohibited within the fenced court area.  Both OPUSD and 

RSRPD shall make every effort to enforce this restriction. 

 13. Term of Agreement:  This revised agreement shall commence as of March 1, 2014, and continue 

thereafter for a term of three (3) years to and including February 28, 2017.  This agreement may, however, be 

terminated by either party hereto upon the giving of ninety (90) days written notice to the other party of its intention 

to terminate this agreement.  Such termination shall be effective upon the expiration of said ninety (90) days. 

 

Dated:    Dated:    
 
OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT RANCHO SIMI RECREATION & PARK DISTRICT 
 
 
    
Anthony W. Knight, Superintendent  Larry Peterson, District Manager 
 

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Typewritten Text
2017

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
2020

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



AdmSvs\Board\Second Interim Report 2016-17 03 21 17.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.c APPROVE CERTIFICATION OF 2016-17 SECOND INTERIM 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND BUDGET REVISIONS 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a positive certification of the Oak Park Unified School 

District (OPUSD) 2016-17 Second Interim Financial Report and Budget 
Revisions? 

 
BACKGROUND: Education Code Sections 1240(j), 42130, and 42131 requires the Governing 

Board of each district to receive and review interim financial reports for 
specified intervals (July 1-October 31 and July 1-January 31), and to certify the 
district’s ability to meet its financial obligations in the current and two 
subsequent years. With a balanced budget, a 4% reserve for economic 
uncertainties, and a multiyear projection demonstrating the ability to meet its 
financial obligations in the current and two subsequent years, the Administration 
is pleased to recommend that the Board approve a positive certification for the 
OPUSD Second Interim Financial statement. 

 
 The full Second Interim Financial may be accessed at the following link:  
 https://goo.gl/EiWTpb 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve a positive certification of the OPUSD 2016-17 Second Interim 

Financial Report and Budget Revisions. 
2. Do not certify the Second Interim Report. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative 1 
 
Prepared by: Barbara Dickerson, Director, Fiscal Services 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          

https://goo.gl/EiWTpb


   

AdmSvs/Board/Safe School Plans 03 21 17.doc 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.d. APPROVAL OF SAFE SCHOOL PLANS 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board review and approve the Safe School Plan for each District 

school as required by Education Code 35294.2? 
 
BACKGROUND: The Oak Park Unified School District must annually review and update its 

Safe School Plans in order to remain in compliance with EC 35294.2. This 
year each of the District’s schools has updated it plan, providing specific site 
information to update the District master copy. These updates include staff 
responsibilities, and procedures to be followed by students and staff in the 
event of disaster or emergency.  EC 35294.2 requires that the revised plans be 
approved by the Board of Education and be made available for public display 
each school year. Each site’s updated plan and certification of compliance has 
been completed and may be accessed at the following link:  

 https://goo.gl/PsAnCM 
 

As required by Education Code, subsequent to the Board’s approval, each 
school will display its Safe School Plan for public review.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve the updated Safe School Plans as presented. 

2. Do not approve the amended Safe School Plans. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Stew McGugan, Director, Alternative Education 
 Julie Suarez, Director, Business Operations 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          

https://goo.gl/PsAnCM


AdmSvs/Board/B.2.e. Award RFP Architectural Services Measure S 03 21 17 .docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:          B.2.e. AWARD OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR 

ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR MEASURE S PROJECTS 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education award the RFP for architectural services in 

connection with Measure S projects as recommended? 
 
BACKGROUND: With the passage of the bond in November, the Measure S Prioritization 

Committee has recognized that it is essential that the District engage a 
qualified and experienced architectural firm to assist with facility planning and 
prioritization, project design, and plan submittal and review by the Division of 
the State Architect. In December and January, the District staff conducted 
telephone interviews with ten architectural firms identified as sharing the 
Board’s vision of sustainable and efficient facilities.  From this number, a 
formal Request for Proposals and Qualifications (RFP) for architectural 
services was sent to six qualified architectural firms.  Four responses were 
received on February 21, 2017, and after review of the proposals, three firms 
were selected to interview with a Measure S interview panel including staff 
and community members. Interviews were conducted on March 9 and 13, 
2017.  After its due diligence review, the interview panel submitted its 
recommendation of Dougherty Architects of Costa Mesa, California, for 
consideration of the full Measure S Committee. At its meeting on March 16, 
2017 the Committee accepted the panel’s recommendation, voting to convey 
the recommendation to the Board of Education for award of the RFP for 
architectural services to Dougherty Architects in connection with Measure S 
projects. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Award the RFP for Measure S architectural services as recommended by 

the Measure S Committee, and authorize the Administration to negotiate 
and enter into an agreement with Dougherty Architects. 

 2. Do not award the RFP for architectural services. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted: 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.f.1. Change Order 1 Proj 17-01S PFMG 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.f. APPROVE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1, PROJECT 17-01S, DISTRICTWIDE 

SOLAR INSTALLATION 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve Change Order No. 1 to the contract with PFMG 

Construction LTD, for Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation? 
 
BACKGROUND: On January 17, 2017, the Board entered into a contract with PFMG Construction 

LTD, for Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation.  During the course of the 
project, District and school site staff have recommended changes to the project’s 
scope for conditions unforeseen at the time the contract was awarded.  As itemized 
in the accompanying change order request, District staff requested the contractor 
provide additional conduits and outlets for future electrical and security camera 
installations, as well as the removal of the existing 3kW solar installation at Oak 
Hills Elementary. The total amount of Change Order No. 1 is $51,809, which when 
added to the original contract amount of $6,663,570, increases the contract total to 
$6,715,379.  It is recommended by District staff that the Board approve this 
additional work as Change Order No. 1. 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve Change Order No. 1 to the contract with PFMG Construction LTD, 

for Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation, in the amount of $51,809, 
funded from the Measure S bond fund. 

2. Do not approve Change Order No. 1. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



   

 

  
Business and Administrative Services 

5801 East Conifer Street, Oak Park, CA 91377-1002 u T: (818) 735-3254 u F: (818) 865-8467   
	

CHANGE	ORDER	17-01S-1	
03-21-17	

	
PROJECT	NUMBER:	 17-01S	
	
PROJECT	NAME:		 DISTRICTWIDE	DESIGN/BUILD	SOLAR	INSTALLATION	
	
CONTRACATOR:		 PFMG	CONSTRUCTION,	LTD	
	
SCOPE	OF	WORK:	 SEE	ATTACHED	
	
COST:	
Original		Contract	Amount	 $	 6,663,570.00	
Previous	Approved	Change	Orders	 $	 0.00	
This	Change	Order	 $	 51,808.69	
Adjusted	Contract	Amount	 $	 6,715,378.69	
	
TIME:	
Original	Contract	Completion	Date	 August	9,	2017	
Previous	Approved	Completion	Extension	Days	 None	
Completion	days	Extension	this	Change	Order	 None	
Adjusted	Contract	Completion	Date	 August	9,	2017	
	
IT	 IS	AGREED	BY	THE	CONTRACTOR	THAT	THE	ADJUSTED	CONTRACT	AMOUNT	AND/OR	TIME,	 IF	ANY,	
INCLUDES	 FULL	 AND	 COMPLETE	 EQUITABLE	 ADJUSTMENT	 AND	 COMPENSATION	 FOR	 ALL	CONTRACT	
WORK	AND	EXTRA	WORK	PERFORMED	ON	THE	PROJECT	 INCLUDING	BUT	NOT	LIMITED	TO	CHANGES,	
DIFFERING	 SITE	 CONDITIONS,	 SUSPENSIONS,	 DELAYS,	 RESCHEDULING,	ACCELERATION,	 IMPACT	 AND	
EXTENDED	OVERHEAD	AS	 IT	RELATES	SPECIFICALLY	TO	THE	ATTACHED	LISTING.	CONTRACTOR	HEREBY	
WAIVES	 ANY	 AND	ALL	 RIGHT	 TO	ADDITIONAL	 COMPENSATION	OR	 TIME	 ARISING	OUT	OF	 THE	WORK	
SPECIFIC	TO	THE	ATTACHED	LISTING,	AND	HEREBY	ACKNOWLEDGES	AND	AGREES	THAT	THE	AMOUNT	
SHOWN	ABOVE	CONSTITUTES	PAYMENT	IN	FULL	ACCORDING	TO	THE	CONTRACT	DOCUMENTS.	
	
EXCEPT	TO	THE	EXTENT	THE	CONTRACT	HAS	BEEN	MODIFIED	BY	PREVIOUSLY	ISSUED	DISTRICT	CHANGE	
ORDERS,	AND	FURTHER	MODIFIED	BY	THIS	CHANGE	ORDER,	THE	CONTRACT	REMAINS	IN	FULL	FORCE	
AND	EFFECT.			
	
OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	 	 CONTRACTOR:		
	
By	

	 	 	
By	

	

	
Date	

	 	 	
Date	

	

		
OPUSD	FACILITIES/CONSTRUCTION	MANAGER	 	 ARCHITECT/ENGINEER:		
	
By	

	 	 	
By	

	

	
Date	

	 	 	
Date	

	

		



mklauss
Typewritten Text
6,663,570.00

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
6,663,570.00

mklauss
Typewritten Text
6,715,378.69



mklauss
Typewritten Text
Martin Klauss

mklauss
Typewritten Text
Assistant Superintendent Business Services

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.g.1. DSA Testing _ Inspection Services Agreement 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.g. APPROVE AGREEMENT FOR DSA TESTING AND INSPECTION 

SERVICES – PROJECT 17-01S, DISTRICTWIDE SOLAR INSTALLATION 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve an agreement with NV5, Inc. for DSA-required 

testing and inspection services for Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation? 
 
BACKGROUND: The Division of the State Architect requires that all construction projects submitted 

for its review and approval must have a DSA-approved Inspector of Record (IOR) 
and as appropriate, DSA-approved testing laboratory. Effective June 1, 2013, these 
services cannot both be provided by a single firm for the same project.  

 
OPUSD Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation, will require the services of a 
DSA-approved firm to provide necessary testing and inspection during construction. 
Over the past 20 years, NV5 has reliably and expertly provided similar services for 
District construction projects. At the request of staff, NV5 has submitted the 
accompanying proposal of estimated costs for this project; cost will be incurred only 
for actual testing services provided.  It is the recommendation of the Facilities and 
Construction management staff that the Board approve an agreement with NV5, Inc. 
for DSA-required testing and inspection services for this project 
. 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve an agreement with NV5, Inc. for DSA-required testing and inspection 
services for Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation, based on the 
accompanying proposal. 

 2. Do not approve an agreement for DSA-required construction testing services. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



























AdmSvs/Board/B.2.h.1. DSA Inspector of Record Services Agreement 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.h. APPROVE AGREEMENT FOR DSA INSPECTOR OF RECORD 

SERVICES – PROJECT 17-01S, DISTRICTWIDE SOLAR INSTALLATION 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve an agreement with Kenco Construction 

Services, Inc. for DSA-required project Inspector  of Record (IOR) services for Project 
17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation? 

 
BACKGROUND: The Division of the State Architect requires that all construction projects submitted 

for its review and approval must have a DSA-approved Inspector of Record (IOR) 
and as appropriate, DSA-approved testing laboratory. Effective June 1, 2013, these 
services cannot both be provided by a single firm for the same project.  

 
OPUSD Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation, will require the services of a 
DSA-approved firm to provide necessary IOR services during construction. Over the 
past two years, Kenco Construction Services has expertly and efficiently provided 
similar services for District construction projects. At the request of staff, Kenco 
Construction Services has submitted the accompanying proposal of estimated costs 
for this project; cost will be incurred only for actual IOR services provided.  It is the 
recommendation of the Facilities and Construction management staff that the Board 
approve an agreement with Kenco Construction Services, Inc. for required DSA 
Inspector of Record services on this project 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve an agreement with Kenco Construction Services, Inc. for DSA-approved 
Inspector of Record services for Project 17-01S, Districtwide Solar Installation, 
based on the accompanying proposal. 

 2. Do not approve an agreement for DSA-required construction testing services. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



 KENCO Construction Services, Inc. 
1230 Doris Ave.  Oxnard, Ca. 93030 

Phone:  (714) 981-2752    -   E-mail:  kenhinge@kenco-inc.com  

 

 
A Division of the State Architects 

 

EIN #27-2782038                                                           www.kencoconstructionservices.com                                “Building Safe Schools” 
SOS Corp. # 3245180 

 
Proposal for DSA Onsite Inspection.  
 
Date:                                          02-17-17 
 
Project Client:                          Oak Park Unified School District  
                                                   5801 East Conifer Street.  Oak Park, CA 91377 
 Phone: (818) 735-3200 
 
Proposed Projects:                   6 Oak Park Solar Projects at various sites. 
                                                   Brookside Elem.  Medea Middle, Oak Hills Elem.  Oak Park High, 
                                                   Oak View High, Red Oak Elem.  -  OPUSD 
                                                   Structures fabricated by PFMG Solar, Huntington Beach, Ca. 
 
DSA App. Number:                 Pending                     DSA File Number:  Pending 
 
Proposed Scope of Work:       On site DSA Project Inspections for the installation of 6 Photovoltaics/Solar 
                                                   Structures, including utilities and site work at 6 different locations. 
                                                   Note:  Special inspection and testing for onsite and in-plant inspections are not included. 
                                                                               
Project Rate:                            $85.00 per hour for DSA inspections with a 4 hour minimum per visit until scope of the 
                                                   approved drawing is complete.  All required documentation included. 
                                                   Unless additional work becomes necessary per the District, the hours will not exceed  
                                                   40 hrs. per week. 
 
Estimated Cost:                       Estimated DSA inspection duration ……….…..…. March 20th, 2017 to August 4th, 2017 
                                                   $85.00 per hr. x 100 days (800 hrs.) ………………………………………..... $ 68,000.00 
                                                    
                                                    
                                                                                                                          Total Estimated Proposal:   $ 68,000.00 
 
                                                   Note:      KENCO will only bill for hours onsite and will provide district  
                                                   representation for any and all administration requirements at the districts direction  
                                                   during onsite inspections at no additional cost.                                         .                                                                     
                                                                      Be advised that all inspections are subject to contractor performance. 
                                                   Therefore the total cost proposal is an estimate and subject to increase or credit. 
 
 
 
Project Inspector Agency Agreement and Contract Duties:  
 
KENCO Construction Services agrees to provide continuous inspection of work for compliance with approved contract 
documents and California Building Codes, including Title 24..  Project Inspector duties are outlined in Title 24, Part 1, 
Chapter 4, Section 4-333 thru 4-342 California Code of Regulations, including DSA Interpretation of Regulations A-6, A-
7, A-8, and as incorporated in the following sections: 
 

1. Represent the client under the guidance of the Architect, Construction Manager or designated agent. 

mailto:kenhinge@kenco-inc.com
http://www.kencoconstructionservices.com/


 KENCO Construction Services, Inc. 
1230 Doris Ave.  Oxnard, Ca. 93030 

Phone:  (714) 981-2752    -   E-mail:  kenhinge@kenco-inc.com  

 
 
 

2. Attend all planning, pre-con conferences, project meetings, or meetings as required by the client. 
 

3. Monitor or observe all special inspections performed by the client-contracted testing laboratory as required by the 
Testing and Inspection Sheet and as outlined in the Project Specifications.  Maintain and update a log specifying 
hours spent on the project by the special inspectors.  Perform or monitor testing for Torque, Epoxy, and Pull Tests 
as required. 

 
4. The client and the inspector shall each defend and hold harmless each other against any losses, liabilities, 

damages, injuries, claims, costs, or expenses arising out of, or connected with the provisions of this agreement 
and the contract documents. 
 

5. This Agreement shall begin on or about March 1st, 2017 and remain in effect continuously until completed, or 
terminated in writing.  This Contract is intended to be an agency agreement and may be terminated in 30 days by 
either party with, or without cause.  This agency agreement shall be assignable to other schools within the 
District, and shall apply to other inspectors as requested and approved by the District.  The District shall not 
employ, contract, or engage in business or mutually beneficial relationship with any inspectors introduced to the 
District through KENCO Construction Services for a period of two (2) years after the dissolution of any contracts 
through KENCO Construction Services, unless written permission is granted prior to each relationship. 
 

6. The Oak Park Unified School District agrees to pay KENCO Construction Services, Inc. our monthly invoice 
for project services, billed at a rate of $85.00 per hour DSA inspection, within 15 working days of receipt of 
invoice.  Each monthly billing shall separately identify hours and charges for each individual school, consistent 
with required site accounting.  KENCO Construction Services shall provide all necessary cell phones, laptop 
computers, digital cameras, and any equipment necessary to maintain proper documentation and administration 
functions throughout the duration of the project.  The District shall provide all office space, utility lines, and 
equipment necessary per the project specifications. 
 

7. KENCO Construction Services shall provide to the District at the end of the project all documentation in a 
professional format, either in binders or on a computer CD.   
 

8. KENCO Construction Services shall not bill the client for any time not directly paid to the project inspectors 
working directly on the project.  A DSA certified project manager will be assigned to oversee the project 
inspector to ensure accurate reporting of all activities and DSA compliance.  Should any emergency arise where 
the consultant/inspector becomes absent, on vacation, or is not able to be on site due to causes beyond his/her 
reasonable control, the DSA certified project manager will provide inspections until the IOR returns. 

                                          
 
 
  
 
 
X _________________________________________          X __________________________________________ 
 
Ken Hinge, President                                                              District Authorized Agent 
KENCO Construction Services, Inc.                                      Oak Park Unified School District 
Date:      02-17-17                                                                   Date: 

mailto:kenhinge@kenco-inc.com


AdmSvs/Board/B.2.i.1. Measure R Proj 14-16R Districtwide Signage OVHS OPIS DO  03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.i. APPROVE MEASURE R CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS, PROJECT 

14-16R, DISTRICTWIDE SCHOOL SIGNAGE – OAK PARK 
INDEPENDENT AND OAK VIEW HIGH SCHOOLS, AND DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve Measure R construction contracts for Project 14-16R, 

Districtwide School Signage – Oak Park Independent and Oak View High 
Schools, and District Administrative Office? 

 
BACKGROUND: Included in the Measure R Master Plan, Project 14-16 R was approved to improve 

site signage at all sites to provide improved safety by making specific District 
facilities more easily identifiable by emergency first responders. All sites have 
now been completed except for Oak Park Independent and Oak View High 
Schools, and the District Administrative Office. District staff has solicited and 
received proposals for a concrete sign to identify the schools and offices on the 
5701-5801 Conifer Street property. The Board is asked to award contracts for 
installation of the sign to the following companies on the District’s approved list 
of California Uniform Public Contract Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) 
contractor list:  
 

 CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK  AMOUNT FUNDING 
 Quick Crete Products Concrete Sign Fabrication $ 9,169 Measure R 
 Hughes General Engineering Concrete demo/foundation/install  21,632 Measure R 
 Welsh Structures Structural Engineering $ 3,800 Measure R 
 PROJECT TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $ 34,601  

 
The planned work will be performed over the District’s spring break.  
 

ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve construction contracts in connection with Project 14-16R, 
Districtwide School Signage – Oak Park Independent and Oak View High 
Schools, and District Administrative Office with Quick Crete Products Corp., 
in the amount of $9,169, Hughes General Engineering, Inc., in the amount of 
$21,632, and Welsh Structures, Inc., in the amount of $3,800, and authorize 
the use of Measure R bond funds for this work. 

2. Do not approve the contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative 1. 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 



AdmSvs/Board/ project 14-16r, districtwide school signage – 3.21.17  

BOARD MEETING, MARCH 21, 2017 
Approve Measure R Construction Contracts, Project 14-16r, Districtwide School Signage – Oak 
Park Independent And Oak View High Schools, And District Administrative Office 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



mklauss
Rectangle





mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
Oak Park Concrete Sign

mklauss
Typewritten Text



mklauss
Typewritten Text
concrete sign

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
Oak Park Concrete Sign

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
SIGN FOUNDATION DESIGN FOR OAK PARK USD

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
concrete

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
SIGN FOUNDATION DESIGN FOR OAK PARK USD

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



mklauss
Typewritten Text
SIGN FOUNDATION DESIGN FOR OAK PARK USD

mklauss
Typewritten Text





AdmSvs/Board//B.2.j.1. WAGS Agreement Amendment 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.j. APPROVE MODIFICATIONS TO FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

WITH WESTLAKE-AGOURA GIRLS SOFTBALL ASSOCIATION 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve modifications to the facility use agreement with 

Westlake-Agoura Girls Softball Association for facility use at Oak View High 
School? 

 
BACKGROUND: The administrations of Oak Park High School (OPHS) and Oak View High 

School (OVHS) have worked with the Westlake-Agoura Girls Softball 
Association (WAGS) to modify the existing agreement between WAGS and the 
District.  Specifically, rather than maintain the current single agreement 
encompassing both school sites, the parties are seeking to establish two separate 
agreements for ease of administration. 

 
The resulting proposed agreement between the District and WAGS for use of 
the OVHS softball accompanies this report for the Board’s review and 
information. It is the recommendation of staff that the Board approve the facility 
use agreement with Westlake-Agoura Girls Softball Association for use of the 
OVHS softball field and associated facilities. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the modifications to the facility use agreement between Oak View 

High School and Westlake-Agoura Girls Softball Association. 
 2. Do not approve the modifications to the facility use agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by:  Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          



	

	

FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT		
BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	

AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	

THIS	FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	(this	“Agreement”)	is	made	by	and	between	the	Oak	
Park	Unified	School	District,	a	political	subdivision	of	the	State	of	California	(“OPUSD”),	and	the	
Westlake	Agoura	Girls	Softball	Association,	a	California	nonprofit	corporation	(“WAGS”),	as	of	
May	 1,	 2016	 (the	 “Effective	 Date”).	 	 OPUSD	 and	 WAGS	 are	 sometimes	 referred	 herein	
collectively	as	the	“Parties.”	
	

RECITALS	
	
	 WHEREAS,	OPUSD	owns	that	certain	real	property	commonly	known	as	Oak	View	High	
School,	located	at	5701East	Conifer	Street,	Oak	Park,	California	91377	(“OVHS”);	and	
	
	 WHEREAS,	OVHS	is	improved	with	certain	buildings,	structures,	and	recreational	fields,	
including	a	softball	field;	and	
	

WHEREAS,	 OPUSD	 is	 authorized	 by	 certain	 statutes,	 including	 the	 Civic	 Center	 Act	
(codified	 in	 Education	 Code	 Sections	 38130,	 et	seq.)	 and	 certain	 OPUSD	 Board	 of	 Education	
(“Board”)	 policies	 to	 permit	 other	 persons	 or	 organizations	 to	 utilize	 district	 facilities	 for	
certain	 authorized	purposes,	 including	 youth-oriented	 recreational	 activities,	 so	 long	 as	 such	
uses	are	in	accordance	with	legal	requirements	and	Board	policies;	
	
	 WHEREAS,	WAGS	desires	to	use	the	softball	 field,	parking	lot	and	certain	restrooms	at	
OVHS	 (the	 “Facilities”),	 which	 are	 depicted	 on	 Exhibit	 A,	 which	 is	 attached	 hereto	 and	
incorporated	herein	by	reference,	for	the	purposes	set	forth	below,	and	OPUSD	agrees	to	such	
use	by	WAGS	on	the	terms	and	conditions	set	forth	below;	and	
	
	 NOW,	 THEREFORE,	 in	 consideration	 of	 the	 foregoing	 recitals,	 the	 promises	 and	
covenants	 of	 the	 Parties	 to	 this	 Agreement,	 and	 other	 good	 and	 valuable	 consideration,	 the	
receipt	and	sufficiency	of	which	the	Parties	acknowledge,	the	Parties	agree	as	follows:	
	

1. Use	of	Facilities.	
	
a. Purpose.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 only	 be	 permitted	 to	 use	 the	 Facilities	 for	 the	

purpose	 of	 WAGS	 softball	 practices	 and	 games.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 not	 be	 permitted	 to	 use	 the	
Facilities	for	any	other	purposes	without	the	prior	written	authorization	of	OPUSD.	

	
b. Time.	 	WAGS	shall	be	permitted	to	use	the	Facilities	 for	 the	 full	calendar	

year;	provided,	however,	that	WAGS	shall	not	have	use	of	the	Facilities	before	8:00	a.m.	or	after	
sundown,	or	during	regular	school	hours	(Monday	through	Friday	from	8:00	a.m.	to	3:00	p.m.	
during	the	academic	school	year)	and	further	provided	that	WAGS’s	use	of	 the	Facilities	shall	
not	interfere	with	OVHS	graduation,	Back	to	School	Night,	or	Open	House.	
	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

2	

c. Third	 Party	 Rentals.	 	 In	 the	 event	 that	 OPUSD	 wishes	 to	 rent	 out	 the	
Facilities	to	a	third	party	during	WAGS’s	specified	times	of	use,	OPUSD	agrees	to	obtain	prior	
permission	from	WAGS.		Use	of	the	Facilities	by	outside	groups	is	governed	by	the	Civic	Center	
Act	and	OPUSD	Board	policies,	rules	and	regulations.	

	
d. Permits.		WAGS	shall	be	solely	responsible	for	obtaining	any	use	permits,	

licenses	or	other	permission	for	its	activities	from	any	governmental	agencies,	aside	from	the	
OPUSD,	having	jurisdiction	over	WAGS’s	business	operations	and	use	of	the	Facilities.		

	
e. Reservation	of	Rights.	 	OVHS	reserves	the	right	 to	supersede	the	softball	

field	time	allocated	to	WAGS	in	the	event	that	OVHS	needs	to	reschedule	a	school	event.	
	

2. Conditions	of	Use.	
	
a. Keys.	 	 OPUSD	 shall	 provide	 one	 (1)	 OVHS	 gate	 key	 and	 one	 (1)	 OVHS	

bathroom	key	 to	 the	WAGS	Commissioner.	 	The	WAGS	Commissioner	 assumes	 responsibility	
for	the	keys	and	oversight	of	this	Agreement.	 	An	annual	one	thousand	dollar	($1,000.00)	key	
deposit	 per	 key	 shall	 be	 required	 at	 time	 of	 issuance.	 	 Upon	 termination	 of	 this	 Agreement,	
WAGS	 shall	 return	 the	 keys	 to	 OPUSD	 and	 in	 return,	 WAGS	 shall	 receive	 the	 one	 thousand	
dollar	($1,000.00)	deposit	per	key;	in	accordance	with	Board	policy,	any	loss	of	keys	shall	result	
in	 the	 forfeiture	 of	 the	 security	 deposit.	 	 WAGS	 expressly	 acknowledges	 that	 unauthorized	
fabrication,	 duplication,	 possession,	 or	 use	 of	 OPUSD	 keys	 is	 a	 crime	 under	 California	 Penal	
Code	 Section	 469,	 and	 that	 school	 keys	 are	 property	 of	 the	 State	 of	 California	 and	 may	 be	
recovered	at	any	time.	

	
b. Gates.		WAGS	shall	be	responsible	for	opening	gates	before	WAGS’s	use	of	

the	Facilities	and	locking	gates	immediately	after	WAGS’s	use	of	the	Facilities.	 	WAGS	shall	be	
responsible	for	any	damage	sustained	or	injury	incurred	due	to	WAGS’s	failure	to	lock	the	gates	
after	WAGS’s	use	of	the	Facilities.	

	
c. Patrons.		WAGS	shall	be	responsible	for	patrons	in	attendance	of	games	or	

practices.	
	
d. Classroom	Facilities.		WAGS	shall	not	have	access	to	the	school	classroom	

facilities.	
	
e. OVHS	 Restrooms.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 be	 responsibility	 for	 the	 cleaning	 and	

restocking	of	the	restrooms	each	Saturday	and	Sunday	after	usage.		OPUSD	shall	be	responsible	
for	 cleaning	 and	 restocking	 of	 the	 restrooms	 Monday	 through	 Friday	 during	 the	 academic	
school	 year.	 	 Each	 Party	 is	 responsible	 for	 the	 regulation	 and	 the	 repair	 of	 any	 damage	
sustained	of	the	bathrooms	during	their	specific	time.	

	
f. Trash	and	Recycling.		OPUSD	shall	supply	trash	and	recycling	bins	on	site	

at	no	cost	to	WAGS.		WAGS	shall	maintain	the	trash	and	recycle	receptacles	being	used	at	OVHS	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

3	

and	OPIS	 at	WAGS	events	 and,	 on	 a	 regular	basis,	 empty	 any	 trash	 into	 the	designated	 large	
trash	bins	on	site.		WAGS	shall	ensure	that	the	Facilities	are	left	in	a	clean	condition	after	each	
WAGS	event.	

	
g. Movie	Night.	 	WAGS	may	hold	one	(1)	family	movie	night	per	year	at	the	

Facilities.		The	event	must	be	completed	by	8:30	p.m.	
	
h. Parking.		WAGS	participants,	staff	and	invitees	may	park	in	the	parking	lot	

at	OVHS	 for	 scheduled	WAGS	 events.	 	 Parking,	 drop	off,	 and	pick	up	 is	 not	 permitted	on	 the	
Country	 Vista	 II	 Homeowners	 Association	 (HOA)	 street.	 For	 purposes	 of	 this	 agreement,	 the	
HOA	street	 is	defined	as	any	and	all	of	 the	private	 streets	west	of	 the	 intersection	of	Conifer	
Street	and	Sunny	Vista	Avenue	that	are	part	of	the	Country	Vista	II	Homeowners	Association.		

	
i. Alterations.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 not	 make	 structural	 modifications	 or	

improvements	 to	 the	 Facilities	 or	 other	 OPUSD	 property	 without	 OPUSD’s	 prior	 written	
consent.	

	
j. Controlled	Substances.		WAGS	shall	not	permit	the	use	or	consumption	of	

alcoholic	beverages,	illegal	drugs	or	tobacco	products	on	OPUSD	property	at	any	time.	
	

3. Consideration.		On	or	before	the	Effective	Date,	WAGS	shall	pay	OPUSD	twenty	
thousand	dollars	($20,000.00)	as	reimbursement	for	a	five	(5)-foot	homerun	fence	with	black	
mesh,	yellow	casing,	and	Oak	Park	Independent	School,	OVHS,	and	WAGS	logos,	which	fence	has	
already	 been	 installed	 by	 OPUSD.	 	 Any	 balance	 of	 the	 twenty	 thousand	 dollars	 ($20,000.00)	
shall	be	allocated	to	OPUSD	to	use	in	any	manner	that	complies	with	applicable	law	and	district	
policy.			
	

4. Term.	
	

a. Initial	Term.		The	term	of	this	Agreement	shall	be	from	the	Effective	Date	
of	 May	 1,	 2016	 to	 January	 1,	 2020	 (the	 “Term”),	 unless	 extended	 or	 earlier	 terminated,	 as	
specified	below.	

	
b. Extension	of	Term.		WAGS	may	request	the	right	to	use	the	Facilities	after	

the	 expiration	 of	 the	 Term;	 provided,	 however,	 that	 any	 extension	 of	 the	 Term	 shall	 be	 in	
OPUSD’s	sole	discretion.	

	
c. Early	 Termination	 by	 OPUSD.	 	 OPUSD	 shall	 have	 the	 right,	 at	 any	 time	

during	the	Term,	to	terminate	this	Agreement	immediately	by	written	notice	to	WAGS	upon	a	
breach	 of	 the	Agreement	 by	WAGS	 or	 upon	 violation	 by	WAGS,	 its	 employees,	 volunteers	 or	
agents	 of	 any	 law,	 rule,	 regulation,	 ordinance,	 or	 Board	 policy.	 	 OPUSD	 reserves	 the	 right	 to	
terminate	any	activity	or	use	that	may	not	be	in	the	best	interest	of	OPUSD	or	the	community.		
Any	early	termination	under	this	Section	shall	not	release	WAGS	from	the	payment	of	any	sum	
then	due	to	OPUSD	or	from	any	claim	for	damages	against	WAGS.	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

4	

	
d. Early	 Termination	 by	 WAGS.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 have	 the	 right,	 at	 any	 time	

during	the	Term,	to	termination	this	Agreement	by	written	notice	to	OPUSD.	
	

5. Facilities	in	“AS	IS”	Condition.		OPUSD	permits	WAGS	to	utilize	the	Facilities	on	
an	 “AS	 IS”	 basis.	 	 OPUSD	 shall	 not	 be	 required	 to	 make	 any	 alterations,	 additions	 or	
improvements	 to	 the	 Facilities.	 	 WAGS	 acknowledges	 that	 OPUSD	 has	 not	 made	 any	
representation	or	warranty	as	to	the	suitability	of	the	Facilities	for	WAGS’s	purposes.	

	
6. Limited	Right	of	Access.	 	WAGS,	 its	 agents,	 employees	 and	 invitees	 shall	 have	

the	right	of	 ingress	and	egress	to	and	from	the	Facilities	over	such	other	portions	of	OPUSD’s	
property	at	OVHS	as	reasonably	necessary	for	the	use	of	the	Facilities;	provided,	however,	that	
such	right	of	ingress	and	egress	shall	be	limited	to	the	purpose	and	scope	expressly	provided	in	
this	Section	6	and	shall	not	imply	or	constitute	any	additional	rights	or	privileges.			
	

7. Maintenance	and	Repair	of	the	Softball	Fields;	Damage	and	Destruction.	
	
a. Annual	 Maintenance.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 be	 responsible	 for	 the	 annual	

maintenance	of	 the	softball	 fields.	 	This	maintenance	shall	 include	annual	conditioning	of	 the	
infield	 dirt;	 provision	 of	 any	 necessary	 extra	 dirt;	 any	 necessary	 repair	 and	maintenance	 of	
outfield	fencing,	outfield	fencing	mesh,	and	outfield	fencing	yellow	cone;	any	necessary	repair	
and	maintenance	of	lipped	areas	of	the	outfield	sod;	and	any	necessary	relining	of	the	fields.	

	
b. Ongoing	 Maintenance.	 	 OPUSD	 shall	 be	 responsible	 for	 the	 mowing,	

fertilization,	aeration,	watering	and	irrigation	repairs	of	the	softball	fields.	
	
c. Damage/Destruction.	 	 In	 the	 event	 that	 the	 Facilities	 are	 damaged	 or	

destroyed	 during	 use	 under	 this	 Agreement	 by	WAGS,	WAGS	 shall,	 at	 the	 option	 of	 OPUSD,	
(i)	immediately	reimburse	OPUSD	for	such	costs	as	shall	be	incurred	in	repairing	said	damage	
and	restoring	the	property	to	its	condition	prior	to	said	use,	or	(ii)	effectuate	the	prompt	repair	
of	the	damage	to	the	pre-damage	condition	to	the	reasonable	satisfaction	of	OPUSD.		

	
8. WAGS	Program	Administration;	Supervision	and	Control.			
	

a. WAGS	 represents	 and	 warrants	 that	 it	 is	 qualified	 to	 administer	 its	
business	operations.		

	
b. WAGS	 shall	 be	 solely	 responsible	 for	 the	 administration	 of	 its	 business	

operations,	 including,	 but	 not	 limited	 to,	 the	 hiring	 and	 supervision	 of	 its	 employees,	
volunteers,	 subcontractors,	 agents	 and	 consultants.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 be	 solely	 responsible	 for	
verifying	the	qualifications	and	credentials	of	its	employees,	volunteers,	subcontractors,	agents	
and	 consultants	 who	 provide	 services	 in	 conjunction	 with	 this	 Agreement.	 	 Unless	 OPUSD	
determines	that	WAGS	employees,	volunteers,	subcontractors,	agents	and	consultants	will	have	
only	 limited	 contact,	 if	 any,	 with	 OPUSD	 students,	 pertinent	 WAGS	 employees,	 volunteers,	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

5	

subcontractors,	agents	and	consultants	shall	comply	with	all	criminal	background	investigation	
requirements	set	forth	in	Education	Code	Section	45125.1,	any	other	applicable	law	and	OPUSD	
policy.			

	
c. WAGS	 shall	 be	 solely	 responsible	 for	 the	 supervision	 and	 control	 of	 all	

WAGS	 program	 activities	 on	 OPUSD	 property,	 including	 the	 Facilities	 and	 related	 areas	 of	
ingress	and	egress.	
	

9. Nature	of	Relationship.	
	
a. The	Parties	agree	that	this	Agreement	is	by	and	between	two	independent	

entities,	 and	 that	 nothing	 contained	 herein	 shall	 be	 construed	 to	 be	 inconsistent	 with	 the	
independent	 relationship	 of	 the	 Parties.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 be,	 and	 at	 all	 times	 is,	 acting	 and	
performing	 as	 independent	 from	 OPUSD,	 and	 not	 as	 a	 partner,	 joint-venturer,	 agent,	 or	
employee	of	OPUSD.	 	WAGS	 is	not	granted	any	 right	or	authority	 to	assume	or	 to	 create	any	
obligation	or	responsibility,	express	or	implied,	on	behalf	of	or	in	the	name	of	OPUSD	or	to	bind	
OPUSD	in	any	manner.			

	
b. WAGS	acknowledges	and	agrees	that	its	employees	shall	not	be	eligible	for	

any	 OPUSD	 employee	 benefits,	 including,	 but	 not	 limited	 to,	 coverage	 under	 the	 California	
workers’	 compensation	 insurance	 laws,	 unemployment	 insurance,	 health	 insurance,	 pension	
plans,	or	any	other	benefits	normally	offered	or	conveyed	to	OPUSD	employees.		WAGS	assumes	
full	 responsibility	 for	applicable	withholding	 taxes	 for	all	 compensation	paid	and	owed	 to	 its	
employees	under	this	Agreement,	and	for	compliance	with	all	applicable	labor	and	employment	
requirements	with	respect	 to	WAGS’s	business	operations,	 including,	but	not	 limited	 to,	 state	
worker’s	 compensation	 insurance	 requirements	 and	 any	U.S.	 immigration	 visa	 requirements.		
WAGS	 agrees	 to	 indemnify,	 defend	 and	 hold	 OPUSD	 harmless	 from	 any	 liability	 for,	 or	
assessment	 of,	 any	 claims	 or	 penalties	 with	 respect	 to	 such	 withholding	 taxes	 and	 labor	 or	
employment	requirements.	

	
10. Compliance	with	Laws.	

	
a. WAGS	 hereby	 agrees	 that	 WAGS,	 its	 officers,	 agents,	 volunteers,	 and	

subcontractors	shall	obey	all	local,	state,	and	federal	laws	and	regulations,	and	OPUSD	policies,	
including	Board	policies,	in	the	performance	of	this	Agreement.		WAGS	further	agrees	to	certify	
the	 foregoing	 as	 set	 forth	 in	 the	 Statement	 of	 Information	 attached	 hereto	 as	 Exhibit	 B	 and	
incorporated	herein	by	reference.	

	
b. WAGS	 represents	 and	 agrees	 that	 it	 does	 not	 and	 shall	 not	 discriminate	

against	any	participant	or	volunteer	because	of	race,	religion,	color,	sex,	or	national	origin.	
	

c. WAGS	shall	refrain	from	applying	any	pesticides	in	and	around	the	softball	
field	 at	 OVHS.	 	 Pesticide	 application	 is	 subject	 to	 Education	 Code	 Sections	 17608	 through	
17614,	the	Healthy	Schools	Act,	and	shall	be	conducted	solely	by	OPUSD.	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

6	

	
d. WAGS	 shall	 be	 responsible	 for	 all	 costs	 of	 clean	 up	 and/or	 removal	 of	

spilled	 regulated	 substances,	 including,	 but	 not	 limited	 to	 paint,	 at	 OVHS	 caused	 by	 the	
operations	of	WAGS	or	any	of	its	subcontractors,	consultants,	agents	or	volunteers.	
	

11. Indemnification.	
	
a. To	the	fullest	extent	permitted	by	California	law,	WAGS	agrees	to	defend,	

indemnify,	and	hold	harmless	OPUSD,	its	officers,	agents,	employees,	and	volunteers	from	any	
and	 all	 claims,	 demands,	 losses,	 damages,	 expenses,	 legal	 fees,	 costs,	 and	 other	 obligations	
arising	 out	 of	 any	 liability	 or	 damage	 to	 person	 or	 property,	 or	 any	 other	 loss,	 sustained	 or	
claimed	to	have	been	sustained	arising	out	of	(i)	the	use	of	OPUSD	real	property,	including,	but	
not	limited	to,	the	Facilities	and	any	areas	of	ingress	and	egress	at	OVHS,	by	WAGS,	its	officers,	
agents,	 volunteers,	 participants,	 subcontractors	 and	 invitees,	 and	 (ii)	 the	 supervision	 and	
control	of	WAGS	program	activities	on	OPUSD	real	property.		The	foregoing	obligation	shall	be	
applicable	 irrespective	 of	 whether	 the	 particular	 act	 or	 omission	 is	 authorized	 by	 this	
Agreement	 or	 not.	 	 WAGS	 shall	 also	 pay	 for	 any	 and	 all	 damage	 to	 the	 real	 and	 personal	
property	 of	 OPUSD,	 or	 loss	 or	 theft	 of	 such	 real	 and	 personal	 property,	 done	 or	 caused	 by	
WAGS,	 its	 officers,	 agents,	 volunteers,	 participants,	 subcontractors	 and	 invitees.	 	 OPUSD	
assumes	no	responsibility	whatsoever	for	any	personal	property	placed	on	OPUSD	premises	by	
WAGS,	or	its	officers,	agents,	volunteers,	participants	subcontractors	or	invitees.		WAGS	further	
hereby	waives	any	and	all	rights	of	subrogation	that	it	may	have	against	OPUSD.		The	provisions	
of	this	indemnification	do	not	apply	to	any	damage	or	losses	caused	by	the	sole	negligence	or	
willful	misconduct	of	OPUSD	or	any	of	its	officers,	agents,	employees,	students,	subcontractors	
and/or	volunteers.	

	
b. To	the	fullest	extent	permitted	by	California	law,	OPUSD	agrees	to	defend,	

indemnify,	 and	 hold	 harmless	WAGS,	 its	 officers,	 agents,	 employees,	 and/or	 volunteers	 from	
any	and	all	claims,	demands,	losses,	damages,	expenses,	legal	fees,	costs,	and	other	obligations	
arising	 out	 of	 any	 liability	 or	 damage	 to	 person	 or	 property,	 or	 any	 other	 loss,	 sustained	 or	
claimed	to	have	been	sustained	arising	out	of	OPUSD’s	use	of	the	Facilities,	including	use	by	any	
of	its	officers,	agents,	employees,	students,	subcontractors	and/or	volunteers,	whether	such	act	
or	 omission	 is	 authorized	 by	 this	 Agreement	 or	 not.	 	 OPUSD	 shall	 also	 pay	 for	 any	 and	 all	
damage	to	the	personal	property	of	WAGS,	or	loss	or	theft	of	such	personal	property,	done	or	
caused	by	such	persons.		The	provisions	of	this	indemnification	do	not	apply	to	any	damage	or	
losses	caused	by	the	sole	negligence	or	willful	misconduct	of	WAGS	or	any	of	its	officers,	agents,	
employees,	participants,	subcontractors	and/or	volunteers.	

	
c. In	 no	 event	 shall	OPUSD’s	 aggregate	 liability	 arising	 out	 of	 or	 related	 to	

this	Agreement,	regardless	of	the	form	of	action,	exceed	five	million	dollars	($5,000,000.00).			
	

d. In	no	event	shall	either	Party	be	held	liable	for	any	special,	consequential,	
indirect	or	incidental	damages	arising	out	of	or	in	connection	with	this	Agreement.	
	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

7	

12. Insurance.	
	
a. Within	fifteen	(15)	days	of	the	Effective	Date,	OPUSD	shall	provide	WAGS	

with	a	certificate	of	insurance,	or	a	substantially	equivalent	document,	showing	evidence	of	the	
OPUSD’s	 general	 liability	 insurance	 coverage	 and	 shall	 also	 provide	 a	 “Policy	 Endorsement	
Form”	naming	WAGS	as	an	additional	insured.	

	
b. Within	fifteen	(15)	days	of	the	Effective	Date,	WAGS	shall	provide	OPUSD	

with	 a	 certificate	 of	 insurance,	 or	 a	 substantially	 equivalent	 document,	 showing	 evidence	 of	
WAGS’s	general	liability	insurance	coverage	and	shall	also	provide	a	“Policy	Endorsement	form”	
naming	OPUSD	as	an	additional	insured.	
	

c. Each	Party	shall	secure,	carry,	and	maintain	at	all	times	during	the	terms	
of	this	Agreement,	at	their	own	sole	cost,	and	expense,	the	following	insurance	coverage:	

	
	 Each	Occurrence	 Aggregate	
Commercial	General	Liability	 $	2,000,000	 $	5,000,000	
Personal	Automobile	Liability	 $	100,000	 $	300,000	
Commercial	Automobile	Liability	 $	1,000,000	combined	single	limit	
Abuse	and	Molestation	 $	1,000,000	 $	2,000,000	

	
d. Commercial	General	Liability	insurance	shall	include	products/completed	

operations,	broad	 form	property	damage,	and	personal	and	advertising	 injury	coverage.	 	Any	
and	all	subcontractors	hired	by	the	Parties	in	connection	with	the	Facilities	shall	maintain	such	
insurance	 unless	 the	 Parties’	 insurance	 covers	 the	 subcontractor	 and	 its	 employees.	 	 The	
Parties	and	any	and	all	of	the	Parties’	subcontractor’s	Commercial	General	Liability	 insurance	
shall	provide	a	list	of	endorsements	and	exclusions.			

	
e. Insurance	written	on	a	“claims	made”	basis	is	to	be	renewed	by	the	Parties	

and	all	of	the	Parties’	subcontractors	for	a	period	of	five	(5)	years	following	termination	of	this	
Agreement.	 	Such	insurance	must	have	the	same	coverage	and	limits	as	the	policy	that	was	in	
effect	during	the	term	of	this	agreement.	
	

f. Failure	on	the	part	of	the	Parties,	or	any	of	its	subcontractors,	to	procure	
or	maintain	required	 insurance	shall	 constitute	a	material	breach	of	 this	Agreement	allowing	
for	 termination	 of	 this	 Agreement	 by	 the	 aggrieved	 Party	 after	 providing	 notice	 and	 a	
reasonable	opportunity	to	obtain	the	required	coverage.	
	

13. No	Assignment.	 	WAGS	 shall	 not	 assign,	 license,	 transfer,	 sublet	 or	 otherwise	
encumber	 its	 interest,	rights	or	duties	 in	this	Agreement	or	 in	the	Facilities	without	the	prior	
written	 consent	of	OPUSD,	 and	any	attempt	 to	do	 so	 shall	 be	void,	 and	 shall	 at	 the	option	of	
OPUSD	 immediately	 terminate	 this	 Agreement.	 	 OPUSD’s	 consent	 to	 one	 assignment,	
subcontract	 or	 transfer	 shall	 not	 be	 deemed	 to	 constitute	 consent	 to	 any	 subsequent	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

8	

assignment,	subcontract	or	transfer.		No	assignment,	subcontract	or	transfer	shall	relieve	WAGS	
of	its	obligations	under	this	Agreement.	

	
14. Successors	 and	 Assigns.	 	 Subject	 to	 Section	 12,	 all	 of	 the	 provisions	 of	 this	

Agreement	shall	inure	to	the	benefit	of	and	shall	be	binding	upon	the	successors	and	assigns	of	
WAGS.	

	
15. Governing	Law;	Venue.		This	Agreement	shall	be	interpreted	in	accordance	with	

the	laws	of	the	State	of	California.	 	If	any	action	is	brought	to	interpret	or	enforce	any	term	of	
this	Agreement,	the	action	shall	be	brought	in	the	County	of	Ventura,	State	of	California.	 	Each	
Party	hereby	waives	and	expressly	agrees	not	to	assert,	in	any	way,	any	claim	or	allegation	that	
it	 is	 not	 personally	 subject	 to	 the	 jurisdiction	 of	 the	 courts	 of	 Ventura	 County.	 	 The	 Parties	
further	 agree	 to	 waive	 any	 claim	 or	 allegation	 that	 the	 suit,	 action,	 or	 proceeding	 is	 either	
brought	in	an	inconvenient	forum	or	that	the	related	venue	is	improper.	

	
16. Dispute	Resolution.	 	The	Parties	agree	 that,	 in	 the	event	of	 any	dispute	under	

this	Agreement,	the	Parties	shall	first	submit	the	matter	to	a	mutually	agreed	upon	mediator.		If	
the	Parties	cannot	agree	upon	a	mediator,	then	each	Party	shall	designate	a	mediator	and	those	
mediators	 shall	 select	 a	 third	mediator	who	 shall	 act	 as	 the	 neutral	mediator	 of	 the	 Parties’	
dispute.	 	Notwithstanding	Section	16,	Attorneys’	Fees,	the	cost	of	the	mediator	shall	be	borne	
equally	by	the	Parties.	 	 If	 the	dispute	or	claim	is	resolved	successfully	through	mediation,	 the	
resolution	shall	be	documented	by	a	written	agreement	executed	by	the	Parties.		If	the	mediator	
is	unable	to	resolve	the	dispute,	 then	the	mediator	shall	provide	written	notice	to	the	Parties	
reflecting	the	same,	in	which	event	the	Parties	shall	submit	the	matter	to	binding	arbitration	in	
Ventura	 County	 pursuant	 to	 the	 rules	 of	 the	 American	 Arbitration	 Association.	 	 The	 Parties	
agree	 that	all	 applicable	 statutes	of	 limitation	 shall	be	 tolled	while	 the	mediation	procedures	
specified	in	this	Agreement	are	pending,	and	the	Parties	agree	to	take	all	action,	including	the	
execution	 of	 stipulations	 or	 tolling	 agreements,	 necessary	 to	 effectuate	 the	 intent	 of	 this	
provision.		Notwithstanding	the	requirements	set	forth	herein,	the	Parties	shall	not	be	required	
to	engage	in	mediation	prior	to	commencing	an	action	in	equity	seeking	injunctive	relief.			

	
17. Attorneys’	Fees.		In	the	event	of	any	action	or	proceeding	to	interpret	or	enforce	

the	terms	of	this	Agreement,	the	prevailing	party,	as	determined	by	the	court	or	arbitrator,	shall	
be	entitled	to	recover	its	reasonable	attorneys’	fees	and	costs	incurred	in	connection	with	such	
actions	or	proceeding;	provided,	however,	that	a	Party	shall	not	be	entitled	to	attorneys’	fees	if	
that	Party	refused	or	failed	to	participate	in	mediation	in	good	faith	in	accordance	with	Section	
16,	above.	

	
18. Construction	 of	 Agreement.	 	 Each	 Party	 participated	 in	 the	 drafting	 and	

preparation	 of	 this	 Agreement.	 	 Therefore,	 the	 provisions	 of	 this	 Agreement	 shall	 not	 be	
construed	 in	 favor	of	or	against	either	Party,	but	shall	be	construed	as	 if	both	Parties	equally	
prepared	this	Agreement.	

	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

9	

19. Headings.		The	Section	headings	used	herein	are	for	the	purpose	of	convenience	
only	and	shall	not	be	deemed	to	 limit	 the	subject	of	 the	Sections	or	 to	be	considered	 in	 their	
construction.			
	 	

20. Taxes.		In	the	unlikely	event	that	WAGS’s	use	of	the	Facilities	results	 in	any	tax	
being	 assessed	 against	OPUSD,	WAGS	 agrees	 to	 and	 shall	 pay	 said	 taxes	 prior	 to	 the	 date	 of	
delinquency	thereof	and	provide	proof	of	such	payment	to	OPUSD	upon	demand.	

	
21. Authority.	 	The	Parties	represent	and	warrant	that	they	each	have	all	requisite	

power	and	authority	to	execute,	deliver,	and	perform	this	Agreement.		Each	Party	warrants	that	
the	 individuals	who	have	signed	this	Agreement	have	the	 legal	power,	right,	and	authority	 to	
make	this	Agreement	and	to	bind	each	respective	Party.	

	
22. Modifications.	 	Any	modifications,	amendment,	or	extension	of	 this	Agreement	

must	be	in	writing	and	signed	by	each	of	the	Parties.	
	
23. No	 Waiver.	 	 The	 waiver	 by	 one	 Party	 of	 the	 performance	 of	 any	 covenant,	

condition	 or	 promise,	 or	 of	 the	 time	 for	 performing	 any	 act,	 under	 this	 Agreement	 shall	 not	
invalidate	 this	 Agreement	 nor	 shall	 it	 be	 considered	 a	 waiver	 by	 such	 Party	 of	 any	 other	
covenant,	condition	or	promise,	or	of	the	time	for	performing	any	other	act	required,	under	this	
Agreement.	

	
24. Severability.		If	any	provision	of	this	Agreement	shall	become	illegal,	null	or	void	

or	against	public	policy,	for	any	reason,	or	shall	be	held	by	any	court	of	competent	jurisdiction	
to	be	 illegal,	null	or	void	or	against	public	policy,	 the	remaining	provisions	of	 this	Agreement	
shall	 not	 be	 affected	 thereby	 and	 shall	 remain	 in	 full	 force	 and	 effect	 to	 the	 fullest	 extent	
permissible	by	law.	

	
25. Entire	Agreement.	 	 This	Agreement	 constitutes	 the	 entire	 agreement	between	

the	 Parties	 pertaining	 to	 the	 subject	 matter	 hereof	 and	 supersedes	 any	 and	 all	 prior	 and	
contemporaneous	agreements,	representations,	negotiations	and	understandings	of	the	Parties,	
oral	or	written.	

	
26. Notices.	 	 All	 notices	 required	 or	 permitted	 to	 be	 given	 under	 this	 Agreement	

shall	 be	 in	 writing	 and	 shall	 be	 personally	 delivered	 or	 sent	 by	 registered	 or	 certified	mail,	
prepaid	and	return	receipt	requested,	addressed	as	follows:	

	
WAGS:		 Westlake	Agoura	Girls	Softball	

Attention:	WAGS	Commissioner	
5739	Kanan	Road,	Suite	127	
Agoura	Hills,	CA	91301	

	
OPUSD:	 Oak	Park	Unified	School	District	

Attention:	Martin	Klauss,	Assistant	Superintendent	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
Initials	________,	__________,	_________,	_________	

10	

5801	Conifer	Street	
Oak	Park,	CA	91377	

	
Notice	 shall	 be	 deemed	 effective	 on	 the	 date	 personally	 delivered,	 or,	 if	 mailed,	 three	 (3)	
working	days	after	deposit	of	same	 in	 the	custody	of	 the	United	States	Postal	Service.	 	Either	
Party	 may,	 by	 written	 notice	 to	 the	 other,	 designate	 a	 different	 address	 which	 shall	 be	
substituted	for	the	one	specified	above.		

	
27. Counterparts.		This	Agreement	may	be	executed	in	counterparts,	each	of	which	

shall	 constitute	 an	 original,	 but	 all	 of	 which	 together	 shall	 constitute	 one	 and	 the	 same	
instrument.	 	 The	 signature	 page	 of	 any	 counterpart	 may	 be	 detached	 therefrom	 without	
impairing	the	legal	effect	of	the	signatures	thereon	provided	such	signature	page	is	attached	to	
any	other	counterpart	 identical	 thereto	except	having	additional	signature	pages	executed	by	
the	other	Party.	 	 Counterparts	may	be	delivered	by	 facsimile	or	 scanned	PDF	 transmitted	by	
email,	provided	that	original	counterparts	are	delivered	to	 the	recipient	on	 the	next	business	
day	following	the	facsimile	or	email	transmission.	
	
	
	 IN	WITNESS	WHEREOF,	the	Parties	have	executed	this	Agreement	as	of	the	dates	listed	
below.	
	
	
“WAGS”	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Mark	Carlson,	WAGS	Commissioner		 	 	 	 Date	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
William	Briggs,	WAGS	Sargent	at	Arms	 		 	 	 Date	
	
“OPUSD”	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Martin	Klauss,	Assistant	Superintendent		 	 	 	 Date	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Stewart	McGugan,	OVHS	Principal	 	 	 	 	 Date	
	
	
	



	

FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
PICTORIAL	DEPICTION	OF	THE	FACILITIES	

	

	
	
	 	



	

	
FACILITIES	USE	AGREEMENT	BETWEEN	THE	OAK	PARK	UNIFIED	SCHOOL	DISTRICT	
AND	THE	WESTLAKE	AGOURA	GIRLS	SOFTBALL	ASSOCIATION	
	
I	

	

EXHIBIT	B	
STATEMENT	OF	INFORMATION	

	
	
	 The	 undersigned	 certifies	 that,	 to	 the	 best	 of	 his	 or	 her	 knowledge,	 the	 persons	 and	
organization	 for	 which	 this	 Facilities	 Use	 Agreement	 is	 made	 uphold	 the	 state	 and	 federal	
constitutions,	and	affirms	that,	to	the	best	of	his	or	her	knowledge,	the	school	property	for	use	
of	 which	 agreement	 is	 made	 will	 not	 be	 used	 for	 the	 commission	 of	 any	 crime	 or	 any	 act	
prohibited	by	law;	any	use	which	is	inconsistent	with	the	use	of	the	school	facilities	for	school	
purposes	 or	which	 interferes	with	 the	 regular	 conduct	 of	 school	 or	 school	work;	 or	 any	 use	
which	 involves	 the	 possession,	 consumption	 or	 sale	 of	 alcoholic	 beverages	 or	 any	 restricted	
substances,	including	tobacco	use.			
	
	 This	statement	is	made	under	the	penalties	of	perjury.	
	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Date	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Signature	
	
Mark	Carlson,	WAGS	Commissioner	
Westlake	Agoura	Girls	Softball	Association	



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.k.1. Measure R Proj 17-04R Sidewalk Safety Repairs BES 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.k APPROVE MEASURE R CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, 

PROJECT 17-04R, EMERGENCY SIDEWALK REPAIRS AT 
BROOKSIDE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve construction contracts in connection with Project 17-04R, 

Emergency Sidewalk Repairs at Brookside Elementary School? 
 
BACKGROUND: The District’s Maintenance Department has determined that a pedestrian tripping 

hazard exists at Brookside Elementary School on the sidewalk and parkway area 
on Satinwood Avenue, immediately adjacent to the kindergarten and primary 
playgrounds. Necessary repair work will require the removal and replacement of 
both concrete walkways and trees. In order to prevent potential injuries, the Board 
is asked to award a contract for emergency repairs to the following company on 
the District’s approved list of California Uniform Public Contract Cost 
Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) contractor list:  
 

 CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK  AMOUNT FUNDING 
 Hughes General Engineering Concrete Removal/Replacement $ 88,322 Measure R 

 
The planned corrective concrete work will be performed over the District’s spring 
break. Phase 2 of the project for tree removal and replacement will be brought to 
the Board at a subsequent meeting. 
 
District maintenance and construction management staff have found that the work 
is essential and recommend that the emergency repairs be funded from the 
Measure R bond fund. Measure R bond language specifically authorizes use of 
bond funds to “Repair, replace, or construct site improvements, including 
sidewalks and walkways...” It is recommended that the Board authorize the 
revision of the District’s Facility Master Plan to incorporate this project, to be 
funded by Measure R bond funds.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify construction contracts in connection with Project 17-04R, Emergency 

Sidewalk Repairs at Brookside Elementary School to Hughes General 
Engineering., Inc., in the amount of $88,322 plus 2.5 % for the required 
contract performance and payment bond, and authorize the use of Measure R 
bond funds for these emergency repairs. 

2. Do not ratify the contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative 1. 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.k.1. Measure R Proj 17-04R Sidewalk Safety Repairs BES 03 21 17.docx 

BOARD MEETING, MARCH 21, 2017 
Approve Measure R Construction Contract, Project 17-04R, 
Emergency Sidewalk Repairs at Brookside Elementary School 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.l.1. Measure R Proj 17-05R Sidewalk Safety Repairs OHES 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.l. RATIFY MEASURE R CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, 

PROJECT 17-05R, EMERGENCY SIDEWALK REPAIRS AT 
OAK HILLS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board ratify a construction contract in connection with Project 17-05R, 

Emergency Sidewalk Repairs at Oak Hills Elementary School? 
 
BACKGROUND: The District’s Maintenance Department has determined that a pedestrian tripping 

hazard exists on the sidewalk approaching Oak Hills Elementary School, in an 
area immediately adjacent to the driveway entrance. In order to prevent potential 
injuries, the Board is asked to ratify the award of a contract for emergency repairs 
to the following company on the District’s approved list of California Uniform 
Public Contract Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA) contractor list:  
 

 CONTRACTOR SCOPE OF WORK  AMOUNT FUNDING 

 Hughes General Engineering Concrete Removal/Replacement $ 4,888 Measure R 

 PROJECT TOTAL ESTIMATED COST $ 4,888  
 
The corrective work was performed on March 10 and 11, 2017.  
 
District maintenance and construction management staff have found that the work 
is essential and recommend that the emergency repairs be funded from the 
Measure R bond fund. Measure R bond language specifically authorizes use of 
bond funds to “Repair, replace, or construct site improvements, including 
sidewalks and walkways...” It is recommended that the Board authorize the 
revision of the District’s Facility Master Plan to incorporate this project, to be 
funded by Measure R bond funds.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Ratify construction contracts in connection with Project 17-05R, Emergency 

Sidewalk Repairs at Oak Hills Elementary School to Hughes General 
Engineering, Inc., in the amount of $4,888, and authorize the use of Measure 
R bond funds for these emergency repairs. 

2. Do not ratify the contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative 1. 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.l.1. Measure R Proj 17-05R Sidewalk Safety Repairs OHES 03 21 17.docx 

BOARD MEETING, MARCH 21, 2017 
Ratify Measure R Construction Contract, Project 17-05R, 
Emergency Sidewalk Repairs at Oak Hills Elementary School 
Page 2 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



mklauss
Rectangle



mklauss
Rectangle



AdmSvs/Board/B.2.m.1. Measure C6 Purchase Emergency Radio System 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.2.m. APPROVE MEASURE C6 BOND FUND EQUIPMENT PURCHASE – 

DISTRICT-WIDE EMERGENCY RADIO SYSTEM UPGRADES 
ACTION 

 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve a Measure C6 bond fund equipment purchase for the 

replacement of aging emergency antennas, repeaters, and radios, to be designated 
as Project 17-06C? 

 
BACKGROUND: As approved by Oak Park voters, Bond Measure C6 specifically provides 

funding “to improve student safety and replace aging school equipment”. For 
the 2016-17 school year, the District’s Maintenance and Operations staff has 
identified Phase 2 of the plan to replace and upgrade the aging emergency 
radio system equipment, including antennas, repeaters and radios.  

 
Requests for quotes from local vendors resulted in two proposals.  However, 
only one proposal met the school district’s needs received from Ryan 
Communications.  A copy of the proposal is included for the Board’s review. 
It is recommended that the Board authorize the purchase of the emergency 
radio system utilizing Measure C6 funds, to be designated as Project 17-06C.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1. Approve the purchase of emergency radio system from Ryan 

Communications of Woodland Hills, California, in the total amount of 
$20,627, to be funded from the Measure C6 bond fund. 

2. Do not approve the purchase of emergency radio system. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
   
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          
 



Ryan Communications 
4872 Topanga Canyon Blvd., # 360 

Woodland Hills, CA 91364 
818-703-6485 voice 

 
 
March 10, 2017 
 
Annette Segal 
Business and Administrative Services Assistant 
Oak Park Unified School District 
5801 E. Conifer Street 
Oak Park, CA 91377 
 
Annette, 
 
Here are the costs for the radio upgrades that you requested. 
 

1) Upgrade/replace/add Digital radios in all 6 M&O vehicles for safety 
and emergency backup and response.  Package includes M&O digital 
base station– equipment and installation $4,170.00. 
 
Kenwood NX-820 UHF analog/digital radio with alpha numeric 
display, hand mic and 2 year factory warranty. 
 
Replace M&O base: $525.00. 
Replace M&O mobile radios: $525.00 each, 6 units $3150.00 
 
Install mobile radio $170.00 each vehicle, 6 installs $1020.00. 
 

2) Replace and upgrade to digital the 7-10 year old walkie talkie radios 
at Medea Creek Middle School these 32 radios are Phase 2 of the 5 
year radio replacement changing out old Motorola radios to digital 
for safety on school campuses.  OPHS and all Emergency radios 
were changed out in phase 1 in 2015/16. 

 
Kenwood NX-340K: 32 channel, 5 watt, Digital/Analog, portable radio 
with, Li-Ion battery, drop in trickle/fast charger, antenna, belt clip, 
programming and 3 year factory warranty. 
 $ 295.00 each, 32 units, $9,440.00. 

 
KMB-28, six unit charger base.  
 $ 156.25, 4 units, $625.00. 

 



3) Upgrade from dual to Tri-Band antenna and mount for MCMS and 
M&O to improve emergency HAM radio EOC communications as 
identified by the Ventura County ACS Areas 2 Operational Readiness 
Team for Emergency Preparedness.  
 
Comet-NCG 144 / 440 / 1.2 GHz antenna w/non penetrating antenna 
mount, coax cable and connectors. 
 $455.00 each, 2 units $910.00. 
 
Install Tri-Band antenna: $225.00 each, 2 installs $450.00 
 

4) Portable radio for Director of Business Operational. 
 
Kenwood NX-340K: 32 channel, 5 watt, Digital/Analog, portable radio 
with, Li-Ion battery, drop in trickle/fast charger, antenna, belt clip, 
programming and 3 year factory warranty. 
 $ 295.00. 
 

5) Hands free Digital Speaker Microphones for M&O staff portable 
radios for safety. 

 
KMC-45 speaker/mic. 
 $65.00 each, 6 units $390.00. 

 
6) Power supply replaces 12 year power supply with 10 year lifespan for 

emergency HAM radio mobile carts at DO and MCMS for Emergency 
Operational Centers as identified by the Ventura County ACS Area 2 
Operational Readiness Team for Emergency Preparedness.  

 
Powerwerx SS-30DV 
 $145.00 each, 2 units $290.00. 
 

7) Deep Cycle Optima battery replaces 12 year old batteries with 
lifespan of 10 years for the 2 HAM radio mobile carts at DO and 
MCMS for Emergency Operational Centers as identified by the 
Ventura County ACS Area 2 Operational Readiness Team for 
Emergency Preparedness.  

 
Optima group D34/78 deep cycle battery. 
 $245.00 each, 2 units $490.00. 
 

8) SMA cable adaptor for portable HAM radio Emergency Operation 
Centers. 

$15.00 each, 2 units $30.00. 
 



9) Cross band 2M/440 repeater to allow radios at the district office to 
communicate on the Ham 440 repeaters.  The cross band repeater 
will be located at MCMS and will include the radio, antenna system, 
power supply and back-up battery as recommended by the Ventura 
County ACS Area 2 Operational Readiness Team for Emergency 
Preparedness.  
 

$1,320.00. 
  

Install cross band repeater $425.00. 
 

Radio equipment cost: $17,465.00 
Installation cost: $1,895.00 
Sales tax: $1,266.22 
 
Total: $20,626.22. 
 
 
If you have any questions, please call me. 
 
Kevin Ryan 
818-439-7077 cell 



TO:                 MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
  
FROM:           DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
  
DATE:            MARCH 21, 2017 
  
SUBJECT:      B.2.n.  APPROVE ACCEPTANCE OF DONATIONS 
                                                                                                                                                                                                ACTION  
 
ISSUE:                      Shall the Board acknowledge and accept donations made to the Oak Park Unified 

School District? 
  
BACKGROUND:    The following donations have been made to the District: 
  

  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Accept the donation with thanks. 
 
  
                                                                                          Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
  ______________________________________ 

                                                                             Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
                                                                                          Superintendent 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 

Site/Program Gift/Donor Gift 

Red Oak Elementary School  Michael Dettore 
Luc Bodden Memorial 

Monument Post  

Red Oak Elementary School  
 

Gothic Landscape  

Olive Tree Transportation and 
Installation for Luc Bodden 

Memorial  

Oak Park High 
School/Robotics Club 

Santa Clarita Community 
College District - College of 

the Canyons  $3,000 grant 



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.3.a. APPROVE CONTRACT FOR NON-PUBLIC SCHOOL 
                                    SERVICES FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION STUDENT  #13-16/17  
 
                ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve this contract for non-public school 

services for this student? 
 
BACKGROUND: This thirteen-year-old, seventh grade student was recently placed by the IEP 

team at Summit View School, a non-public school operated by The Help 
Group.  The cost of the special education and related services for the 
remainder of the 2016-2017 school year is $13,503.20.  The District will 
receive an estimated $3,600.00 in revenue limit funds for students in grades 
7-8, reducing the actual cost to $9,903.20. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1)  Fund this non-public school. 
  2)  Do not fund this non-public school.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1 
 
RATIONALE: The District is required by law to provide the services stated on a student’s 

IEP.   The Help Group – Summit View is a certified non-public school. 
 
   Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
    
  Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
  Superintendent 
 
 
 
Board Action:  On motion of________________, seconded by______________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Member         
 







TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.3.b. APPROVE CONTRACT FOR NON-PUBLIC SCHOOL  
                                    SERVICES FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION STUDENT  #14-16/17  
 
              ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve this contract for non-public school 

services for this student? 
 
BACKGROUND: This eight-year-old, second grade student was recently placed by the IEP 

team in a residential treatment facility, Intermountain, in Montana.  
Intermountain is certified by the state as a residential placement and has a 
certified non-public school on-site.  The cost for room and board 
($46,350.00) and mental health services ($33,020.00) will be reimbursed by 
the SELPA.  OPUSD will be responsible for the basic special education 
services of the non-public school.  The estimated cost of these special 
education services for the remainder of the 2016-2017 school year is 
$11,400.00; the district cost will be offset by approximately $3,500.00 in 
revenue limit funds for students K-3, reducing the actual cost to $7,900.00. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1)  Fund this non-public school. 
  2)  Do not fund this non-public school.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative #1 
 
RATIONALE: The District is required by law to provide the services stated on a student’s 

IEP.   Intermountain is a certified non-public school. 
 
  Respectfully Submitted 
 
    
  Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
  Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action:  On motion of________________, seconded by______________, the Board of Education: 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Member         
 







TO: BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE:        MARCH 21, 2017   
 
SUBJECT: B.4.a. APPROVE ADDITIONAL COURSE FOR OAK PARK HIGH 

SCHOOL  
 ______________________________________________________________________ 
 
ISSUE:                       Should Oak Park High School add a new course to its course offerings for 

2017-2018?  
 
STATEMENT:          Oak Park High School would like to add a new course to its course 

offerings.  The class is titled: Aerospace Engineering. A detailed plan for 
the course is attached. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve the addition of a new class to the course offerings at Oak                 

Park High School. 
  2.  Do not approve the addition of a new class to the course offerings at 

Oak Park High School. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:    Alternative No. 1. 
 
Prepared by Jay Greenlinger, Ed.D., Director of Curriculum and Instruction 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
            

Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
      Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          
 
 
 



	
OPHS	Proposed	Course	Outline	

	
I. Course	Title	

Aerospace		
II. Grade	Level	

11th	–	12th	
Length/Credit:		One	Year	–	10	Credits	
No	Prerequisite	

III. OPUSD	Moral	Imperatives	Addressed	
1a.		Design	and	implement	a	successful	transition	to	Common	Core	
standards;	explore	NGSS.	
1b.		Our	emphasis	on	differentiated	instruction	shall	continue	so	that	all	of	
our	students	experience	a	challenging	learning	environment	through	depth,	
complexity	and	novelty.	
[Technology,	performance	tasks	hands	on	instruction]	

IV. Course	Description	
Aerospace	Engineering	propels	students’	learning	in	the	fundamentals	of	
atmospheric	and	space	flight.	As	they	explore	the	physics	of	flight,	students	
bring	the	concepts	to	life	by	designing	an	airfoil,	propulsion	system,	and	
rockets.	They	learn	basic	orbital	mechanics	using	industry-standard	software.	
They	also	explore	robot	systems	through	projects	such	as	remotely	operated	
vehicles.		This	is	a	part	of	Oak	Park's	Engineering	Design	pathway.		

		
Utilizing	the	activity-project-problem-based	(APPB)	teaching	and	learning	
pedagogy,	students	will	analyze,	design	and	build	electronic	and	physical	
models	of	flight	vehicles.		While	implementing	these	designs	students	will	
continually	hone	their	interpersonal	skills,	creative	abilities	and	
understanding	of	the	design	process.	
	
Through	hands-on	projects,	students	apply	engineering	standards	while	
documenting	their	work	in	design.	Students	use	industry	standard	3D	
modeling	software	to	help	design	solutions	to	solve	proposed	problems,	
document	their	work	using	an	engineer’s	notebook,	and	communicate	
solutions	to	peers	and	members	of	the	professional	community.	This	course	
will	be	the	third	of	the	engineering	and	construction	design	career	technical	
education	pathways.	

V. Brief	Course	Outline	
A. Overview	of	Aerospace	Design 	
B. Evolution	of	Flight	
C. Airfoils	
D. Air	Navigation	
E. GPS		

VI. Methods	of	Assessment	



Students will be assessed through labs, homework, quizzes, tests and 
projects. 

VII. Materials/Textbook 
This course will use the materials from Project Lead the Way.  One to one 
technology will be used within the classroom. 

VIII. “a-g” Approval 
This course has already been preapproved as a “g” requirement. 

	



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE:   MARCH 21, 2017 

 
SUBJECT:     B.4.b   APPROVE 2016-17 SINGLE PLANS FOR STUDENT 

ACHIEVEMENT  
 ACTION 
 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board approve each site’s Single Plan for Student Achievement? 

 

BACKGROUND:    California Education Code sections 41507, 41572, and 64001 and the 

federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) require each 

school to consolidate all school plans for programs funded through the 

School and Library Improvement Block Grant, the Pupil Retention 

Block Grant, the Consolidated Application, and ESEA Program 

Improvement into the Single Plan for Student Achievement. The Single 

Plan for Student Achievement serves as a guide for continuous 

development, implementation, and monitoring cycle of various 

programs. It is a collection and analysis of student performance data, 

setting priorities for program improvements, rigorous use of effective 

solution strategies, and ongoing monitoring of results.  

 

 Site Plans for all schools are available at this link https://goo.gl/6QkI5a 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve the Single Plan for Student Achievement for each site. 

2. Do not approve the Single Plan for Student Achievement for each site. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 _________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of ____________, seconded by ___________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          

https://goo.gl/6QkI5a


AdmSvs/Z/Board/Tech Asst Position.12.07.10 

 
 
 
TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.4.c. APPROVE 2015-2016 SCHOOL ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT 

CARDS 
 ACTION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board of Education approve the School Accountability Report 

Cards for 2015-2016? 
 
BACKGROUND: In November 1988, California voters passed Proposition 98, also known as 

The Classroom Instructional Improvement and Accountability Act.  This 
ballot initiative provides California’s schools with a source of funding.  In 
return, all public schools in California are required annually to prepare 
SARCs and disseminate them to the public.  SARCs are intended to provide 
the public with important information about each public school and to 
communicate a school’s progress in achieving its goals. 

 
                                       In the years since the passage of Proposition 98, additional requirements for 

school accountability reporting and dissemination have been established 
through legislation.  Most SARC requirements are codified in California 
Education Code 33126 and 33126.1. The 2015-2016 SARC reports are 
available at this link: https://goo.gl/bcViq6 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.  Approve the 2015-2016 SARC reports. 

2. Do not approve the SARC reports. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Alternative No. 1 
 
Prepared by: Leslie Heilbron, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent  
 
Board Action: On motion of ________________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton          
Helfstein          
Laifman          
Rosen          
Ross          
Student Rep          
 
 
 
 

https://goo.gl/bcViq6


TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017  
 
SUBJECT: B.5.a. APPROVE AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 9240 – BOARD 

TRAINING - Second Reading 
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Bylaws of the 

Board 9240 – Board Training? 
 
BACKGROUND: Board Bylaw retitled and updated to address the purposes and importance of 

board training, recommended topics of training for new and first-term board 
members, and the district's process for selecting board training activities. The 
bylaw also reinforces the prohibition against a majority of the board members 
discussing district business of a specific nature while attending a conference or 
similar public gathering. Board Bylaw 9240 is being submitted with 
recommended language from CSBA.   

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment of Bylaws of the Board 9240 – Board Training. 

2. Do not approve the amendment Bylaws of the 9240 – Board Training. 
3. Adopt a modified version of the amendment to Bylaws of the Board 9240 – 

Board Training. 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of Alternative #1. 
 

     
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         
 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 

 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board          BB 9240(a)  
              
 
Board Development 
Board Training 
 
Citizens elected to the Governing Board are entrusted with the responsibility of governing 
district schools.  The Governing Board believes that the Board's ability to effectively and responsibly 
govern the district is essential to promoting student achievement, building positive community relations, 
and protecting the public interest in district schools. The Board recognizes that its members need 
training shall be provided sufficient opportunities for professional development that helps them 
understand their responsibilities, stay abreast of new developments in education, and develop 
boardsmanship skills.   
 
 All Board members may attend conferences for the purpose of Board development.  Board 
business shall not be discussed at conferences.   
  
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
The Board and/or the Superintendent or designee shall provide an orientation to newly elected or 
appointed Board members which includes comprehensive information regarding Board roles, 
policies, and procedures and the district's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges. 
Throughout their first term, Board members shall continue to participate in additional 
educational opportunities designed to assist them in understanding the principles of effective 
governance, including, but not limited to, information on school finance and budgets, student 
achievement and assessment, labor relations, community relations, program evaluation, open 
meeting laws (the Brown Act), conflict of interest laws, and other topics necessary to govern 
effectively and in compliance with law. 
 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 
 
All Board members are encouraged to continuously participate in advanced training offered by 
the California School Boards Association in order to reinforce boardsmanship skills and build 
knowledge related to key education issues. Such activities may include online courses, webinars, 
webcasts, and in-person attendance at workshops and conferences. In addition, workshops and 
consultations may be held within the district on issues that involve the entire governance team. 
 
Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, as soon as possible on the 
inservice activities they attend. 
 
Funds for Board development training shall be budgeted annually for each Board member. 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

BYLAWS OF THE BOARD 
 
Series 9000         Bylaws of the Board          BB 9240(b)  
              
 
In selecting appropriate activities, the Board and/or individual Board members shall consider 
activities that are aligned with the district's vision and goals and the needs of the Board or 
individual member to obtain specific knowledge and skills. The Board shall annually develop a 
board training calendar in order to schedule and track board training activities and to schedule 
opportunities for Board members to report on the activities in which they participated. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement, and Other Benefits) 
 
Board members may attend a conference or similar public gathering with other Board members 
and/or with the Superintendent or designee in order to develop common knowledge and 
understanding of an issue or engage in team-building exercises. In such cases, a majority of the 
Board members shall not discuss among themselves, other than as part of the scheduled program, 
business of a specified nature that is within the district's jurisdiction, so as not to violate the 
Brown Act open meeting laws pursuant to Government Code 54952.2. 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Board members shall report to the Board, orally or in writing, on the board training activities 
they attend, for the purpose of sharing the acquired knowledge or skills with the full Board and 
enlarging the benefit of the activity to the Board and district. 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
33360  Department of Education and statewide association of school district boards; annual workshop 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially 
54952.2  Meeting 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Professional Governance Standards for School Boards 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California County Boards of Education: http://www.theccbe.org 
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org 
 
Adopted:  10-19-77,  
Amended: 11-6-84, 9-11-90, 3-12-02, 9-17-02, 03-21-17 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.5.b.   ADOPT NEW ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 3311.2 – LEASE- 
                                       LEASEBACK CONTRACTS – First Reading  
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve and adopt the proposed New 

Administrative Regulation 3311.2 – Lease-Leaseback Contracts? 
 
BACKGROUND: New regulation includes material formerly in BP/AR 3311 - Bids pertaining to 

requirements for awarding lease-leaseback contracts. Material significantly 
revised to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2316, 2016) which no longer permits the 
selection of a lease-leaseback contractor without advertising, and instead requires 
districts to use a comprehensive "best value" selection process.   

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve and adopt the New Administrative Regulation 3311.2 - Lease-

Leaseback Contracts.  
 2.   Do not adopt New Administrative Regulation 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback 
                                              Contracts.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of Alternative #1. 
      

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations                 AR 3311.2(a)  
              
 
Lease-Leaseback Contracts 
 
The district may lease currently owned district property to any person, firm, or corporation for a 
minimum of $1 per year, as long as the lease requires the person, firm, or corporation to 
construct a building or buildings on the property for the district's use during the lease and the 
property and building(s) will vest in the district at the expiration of the lease ("lease-leaseback"). 
(Education Code 17406) 
 
(cf. 3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property) 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
Any lease-leaseback contract shall be awarded through a competitive "best value" procurement 
process whereby a person, firm, or corporation is selected on the basis of objective criteria for 
evaluating the qualifications of proposers, with the resulting selection representing the best 
combination of price and qualifications. To make this determination, the district shall use the 
following procedures: (Education Code 17400, 17406) 
 
1.  Request for Sealed Proposals: The Superintendent or designee shall prepare a request for 
sealed proposals which shall include: 
 

a.  An estimate of the project's price 
 
b.  A clear, precise description of any preconstruction services that may be required and the 

facilities to be constructed 
 
c.  The key elements of the contract to be awarded 
 
d.  A description of the format that proposals shall follow and the elements they shall contain 
 
e.  The standards the district will use in evaluating proposals 
 
f.  The date on which proposals are due 
 
g.  The timetable the district will follow in reviewing and evaluating proposals 

 
2.  Notice: At least 10 days before the date for receipt of the proposals, the Superintendent or 
designee shall give notice of the request for sealed proposals using both of the following 
methods: 
 

a.  Providing notice at least once a week for two weeks in a local newspaper of general 
circulation pursuant to Public Contract Code 20112



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations               AR 3311.2(b)  
              
 

b.  Providing notice in a trade paper of general circulation published in the county where the 
project is located 

 
The Superintendent or designee also may post the notice on the district's web site or through an 
electronic portal. 
 
3.  Prequalification: A proposer shall be prequalified in accordance with Public Contract Code 
20111.6(b)-(m) in order to submit a proposal. Any electrical, mechanical, and plumbing 
subcontractors shall be subject to the same prequalification requirements. 
 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
 
4.  Evaluation Criteria: The request for sealed proposals shall identify all criteria that the district 
will consider in evaluating the proposals and qualifications of the proposers, including relevant 
experience, safety record, price proposal, and other factors specified by the district. The price 
proposal shall include, at the district's discretion, either a lump-sum price for the contract to be 
awarded or the proposer's proposed fee to perform the services requested, including the 
proposer's proposed fee to perform preconstruction services or any other work related to the 
facilities to be constructed, as requested by the district. 
 
The request for sealed proposals shall specify whether each criterion will be evaluated on a pass-
fail basis or will be scored as part of the "best value" score, and whether proposers must achieve 
any minimum qualification score for award of the contract. For each scored criterion, the district 
shall identify the methodology and rating or weighting system that will be used by the district in 
evaluating the criterion, including the weight assigned to the criterion and any minimum 
acceptable score. 
 
5.  Evaluation of Proposals: All proposals received shall be reviewed to determine whether they 
meet the format requirements and the standards specified in the request for sealed proposals. The 
district shall evaluate the qualifications of the proposers based solely upon the criteria and 
evaluation methodology set forth in the request for sealed proposals, and shall assign a best value 
score to each proposal. Once the evaluation is complete, all responsive proposals shall be ranked 
from the highest best value to the lowest best value to the district. 
 
6.  Award of Contract: The award of the contract shall be made by the Governing Board to the 
responsive proposer whose proposal is determined, in writing by the Board, to be the best value 
to the district. 
 
If the selected proposer refuses or fails to execute the tendered contract, the Board may award 
the contract to the proposer with the second highest best value score, if deemed in the best 
interest of the district. If that proposer then refuses or fails to execute the tendered contract, the 
Board may award the contract to the proposer with the third highest best value score.



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations      AR 3311.2(c)  
              
 
Upon issuance of a contract award, the district shall publicly announce its award, identifying the 
entity to which the award is made, along with a statement regarding the basis of the award. The 
statement regarding the contract award and the contract file shall provide sufficient information 
to satisfy an external audit. 
 
7.  Rejection of Proposals: At its discretion, the Board may reject all proposals and request new 
proposals. 
 
Prior to entering into a lease-leaseback agreement, the Superintendent or designee shall have on 
file the contractor's enforceable commitment that the contractor and its subcontractors at every 
tier will use a skilled and trained workforce to perform all work on the project or contract that 
falls within an apprenticeable occupation in the building and construction trades.  (Education 
Code 17407.5) 
 
Any lease-leaseback agreement shall be reviewed by the district's legal counsel to ensure that all 
required terms, including a lease term that provides for the district's occupancy of the building or 
improved property during the lease and an appropriate financing component, are included in the 
agreement. 
 
(cf. 9124 - Attorney) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
17400 Definitions 
17406 Lease-leaseback contract 
17407.5 Use of a skilled and trained workforce 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
20111.6 Prequalification procedures 
20112 Notices 
COURT DECISIONS 
McGee v. Balfour Beatty Construction, LLC, et al. (4/12/16, No. B262850) 
Davis v. Fresno Unified School District, (2015) 237 Cal.App.4th 261 
 
Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Association of School Business Officials:  http://www.casbo.org 
 
 
Adopted: 03-21-2017  
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.5.c.   ADOPT NEW ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 3311.3 – DESIGN- 
                                       BUILD CONTRACTS – First Reading  
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve and adopt the proposed New 

Administrative Regulation 3311.3 – Design-Build Contracts? 
 
BACKGROUND: New regulation includes material formerly in BP/AR 3311 - Bids pertaining to 

requirements for awarding design-build contracts. Minor editorial changes made 
to clarify the process and more directly reflect law.  

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve and adopt the New Administrative Regulation 3311.3 – Design-

Build Contracts. 
 2.   Do not adopt New Administrative Regulation 3311.3 – Design-Build 

Contracts. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of Alternative #1. 
      

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations                 AR 3311.3(a)  
              
 
Design-Build Contracts 
 
The Governing Board may approve a contract with a single entity for both design and 
construction of any school facility in excess of $1,000,000, awarding the contract to either the 
low bid or the best value as determined by evaluation of objective criteria. (Education Code 
17250.20) 
 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7140 - Architectural and Engineering Services) 
 
Design-build documents shall not include provisions for long-term project operations, but may 
include operations during a training or transition period. (Education Code 17250.25) 
 
The procurement process for design-build projects shall be as follows: (Education Code 
17250.25, 17250.35) 
 
1.  The district shall prepare a set of documents setting forth the scope and estimated price of the 
project. The documents may include, but are not limited to: 
 

a.  The size, type, and desired design character of the project 
 
b.  Performance specifications that cover the quality of materials, equipment, and   
     workmanship 
 
c.  Preliminary plans or building layouts 
 
d.  Any other information deemed necessary to describe adequately the district's needs 

 
The performance specifications and any plans shall be prepared by a design professional who is 
duly licensed and registered in California. 
 
2.  The district shall prepare and issue a request for qualifications in order to prequalify, or 
develop a short list of, the design-build entities whose proposals shall be evaluated for final 
selection. The request for qualifications shall include, but is not limited to, all of the following 
elements: 
 

a.  Identification of the basic scope and needs of the project or contract, the expected cost 
range, the methodology that will be used by the district to evaluate proposals, the 
procedure for final selection of the design-build entity, and any other information deemed 
necessary by the district to inform interested parties of the contracting opportunity 

 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations               AR 3311.3(b)  
              
 

b. Significant factors that the district reasonably expects to consider in evaluating  
qualifications, including technical design and construction expertise, acceptable safety 
record, and all other non-price-related factors 

 
c   A standard template request for statements of qualifications prepared by the district, which  
     shall contain all of the information required pursuant to Education Code 17250.25 

 
The district also may identify specific types of subcontractors that must be included in the 
statement of qualifications and proposal. 
 
A design-build entity shall not be prequalified or short-listed unless the entity provides an 
enforceable commitment to the district that the entity and its subcontractors at every tier will use 
a skilled and trained workforce, as defined in Education Code 17250.25, to perform all work on 
the project or contract that falls within an apprenticeable occupation in the building and 
construction trades. The entity may demonstrate such commitment through a project labor 
agreement, by becoming a party to the district's project labor agreement, or through an agreement 
with the district to provide evidence of compliance on a monthly basis during the performance of 
the project or contract. 
 
3.  The district shall prepare a request for proposals (RFP) that invites prequalified or short-listed 
entities to submit competitive sealed proposals in a manner prescribed by the district. The RFP 
shall include the information identified in items #2a and 2b above and the relative importance or 
weight assigned to each of the factors. If the district uses a best value selection method for a 
project, the district may reserve the right to request proposal revisions and hold discussions and 
negotiations with responsive proposers, in which case the district shall so specify in the request 
for proposals and shall publish separately or incorporate into the request for proposals applicable 
procedures to be observed by the district to ensure that any discussions or negotiations are 
conducted in good faith. 
 
4.  For those projects utilizing low bid as the final selection method, the bidding process shall 
result in lump-sum bids by the prequalified or short-listed design-build entities, and the contract 
shall be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
5.  For those projects utilizing best value as a selection method, the following procedures shall be 
used: 
 

a. Competitive proposals shall be evaluated using only the criteria and selection procedures   
specifically identified in the request for proposals. Criteria shall be weighted as deemed 
appropriate by the district and shall, at a minimum, include price, unless a stipulated sum is 
specified; technical design and construction experience; and life-cycle costs over 15 or more 
years.



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations               AR 3311.3(c)  
              
 

b. Following any discussions or negotiations with responsive proposers and completion of 
the evaluation process, the responsive proposers shall be ranked on a determination of 
value provided, provided that no more than three proposers are required to be ranked. 

 
c. The contract shall be awarded to the responsible entity whose proposal is determined by 

the district to have offered the best value to the public. 
 

d. The district shall publicly announce the contract award, identifying the entity to which 
the award is made and the basis of the award. This statement and the contract file shall 
provide sufficient information to satisfy an external audit. 

 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
17250.10-17250.55 Design-build contracts 
 
Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Association of School Business Officials:  http://www.casbo.org 
California Department of Education, Facilities: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/fa 
 
Adopted: 03-21-2017 
 
 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: B.5.d.   ADOPT NEW ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 3311.4  
                                       PROCUREMENT OF TECHNOLOGICAL EQUIPMENT – First Reading  
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve and adopt the proposed New 

Administrative Regulation 3311.4 – Procurement of Technological Equipment? 
 
BACKGROUND: New regulation includes material formerly in BP/AR 3311 - Bids pertaining to 

requirements for the "competitive negotiation" process authorized for procurement 
of computers, software, telecommunications equipment, microwave equipment, or 
other related electronic equipment and apparatus. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve and adopt the New Administrative Regulation 3311.4 – Procurement 

of Technological Equipment. 
 2.   Do not adopt New Administrative Regulation 3311.4 – Procurement of 

Technological Equipment. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 Approval of Alternative #1. 
      

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 
Board Action: On motion of _______________, seconded by _______________, the Board of Education: 

VOTE: AYES  NOES  ABSTAIN  ABSENT  
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations                 AR 3311.4(a)  
              
 
Procurement Of Technological Equipment 
 
Rather than seek competitive bids, the district may use competitive negotiation when it makes a 
finding that a district procurement is for computers, software, telecommunications equipment, 
microwave equipment, or other related electronic equipment and apparatus.  Competitive 
negotiation shall not be used to contract for any product that is available in substantial quantities 
to the general public.  (Public Contract Code 20118.2) 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
Whenever the competitive negotiation process is determined to be appropriate for such 
procurements, the district shall use the following procedures: (Public Contract Code 20118.2) 
 
1.  The Superintendent or designee shall prepare a request for proposals (RFP) that shall be 
submitted to an adequate number of qualified sources, as determined by the district, to permit 
reasonable competition consistent with the nature and requirement of the procurement. 
 
2.  Notice of the RFP shall be published at least twice in a newspaper of general circulation, at 
least 10 days before the date for receipt of the proposals. 
 
3.  The Superintendent or designee shall make every effort to generate the maximum feasible 
number of proposals from qualified sources, and shall make a finding to that effect before 
proceeding to negotiate if only a single response to the RFP is received. 
 
4.  The RFP shall identify all significant evaluation factors, including price, and their relative 
importance. 
 
5.  The Superintendent or designee shall provide reasonable procedures for the technical 
evaluation of the RFPs received, the identification of qualified sources, and the selection for the 
award of the contract. 
 
6.  The Governing Board shall award the contract to the qualified bidder whose proposal meets 
the evaluation standards and will be most advantageous to the district, considering price and all 
other factors. 
 
7.  If the Board does not award the contract to the bidder whose proposal contains the lowest 
price, then the Board shall make a finding setting forth the basis for the award to another bidder. 
 
8.  The Board, at its discretion, may reject all proposals and request new RFP



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
Series 3000           Business and Non-instructional Operations                 AR 3311.4(b)  
              
 
Provisions in any contract concerning utilization of small business enterprises that are in 
accordance with the RFP shall not be subject to negotiation with the successful proposer. (Public 
Contract Code 20118.2) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
20118.2 Contracting by school districts; technological equipment  
 
Adopted: 03-21-2017 
 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:       B.5.e.    APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY 5111 – ADMISSION  
                                        First Reading  
             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Board 

Policy 5111 – Admission? 
 
BACKGROUND: Policy revised to add language to allow all children equal access to  
   education, regardless of immigration status. Board Policy 5111 is being  
   submitted with recommended changes from CSBA.   
 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment to Board Policy 5111 – Admission. 
 2. Do not amend Board Policy 5111 – Admission. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000      Students          BP 5111(a) 
              
 
Admission 
 
The Governing Board encourages the enrollment and appropriate placement of all school-aged 
children in school.  The Superintendent or designee shall inform parents/guardians of children 
entering a district school at any grade level about admission requirements and shall assist them 
with enrollment procedures. 
 
Before enrolling any child in a district school, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 
child’s age, residency, immunization, and any other applicable admission eligibility criteria 
specified in law, the accompanying administrative regulation, or other applicable Board policy 
and or administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 
 (cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 
(cf. 5125 – Student Records) 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 
(cf. 5141.32 – Health Screening for School Entry) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the enrollment of a homeless or foster child or a 
child of a military family is not delayed because of outstanding fees or fines owed to the child’s 
last school or for his/her inability to produce previous academic, medical, or other records 
normally required for enrollment. 
 
(cf. 6173 – Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 – Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 – Education forof Children of Military Families) 
 
In addition, no child shall be denied enrollment in a district school solely on the basis of his/her 
arrest, adjudication by a juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, 
detention in a juvenile facility, enrollment in a juvenile court school, or other contact with the 
juvenile justice system. (Education Code 48645.5) 
 
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire into or request documentation of a student's 
citizenship or immigration status, and shall not deny a student enrollment in a district school on 
the basis of the citizenship or immigration status of the student or his/her parents/guardians. Any 
information obtained about a student's or parent/guardian's citizenship or immigration status shall 
not be shared without parent/guardian consent or a lawful judicial order, in accordance with laws 
pertaining to the confidentiality of student records. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000      Students          BP 5111(b) 
              
 
A student shall not be denied enrollment based on the parent/guardian's refusal to provide the 
student's or parent/guardian's social security number. During the enrollment process, students 
and parents/guardians shall be informed that disclosure of their social security number is 
voluntary. (5 USC 552a Note)  
 
When enrolling in any district school, including a school in their attendance area, children whose 
parents/guardians reside within district boundaries shall be subject to the timelines established by 
the Board for open enrollment.  Children whose parents/guardians do not reside within the 
district or who are not otherwise eligible for enrollment in the district may apply for interdistrict 
attendance in accordance with the timelines specified in applicable Board policies and 
administrative regulations. 
 
(cf. 5116.1 – Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 
(cf. 5117 – Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 5118 – Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 
 
The district’s enrollment application shall include information about the health care options and 
enrollment assistance available to families within the district.  The district shall not discriminate 
against any child for not having health care coverage and shall not use any information relating 
to a child’s health care coverage or his/her interest in learning about health care coverage in any 
manner that would harm the child or his/her family. (Education Code 49452.9) 
 
(cf. 0410 – Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
46300 Computation of average daily attendance, inclusion of kindergarten and transitional kindergarten 
46600 Agreements for admission of pupils  students desiring interdistrict attendance 
48000 Minimum age of admission (kindergarten) 
48002 Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first grade 
48010 Minimum age of admission (first grade) 
48011 Admission from kindergarten or other school; minimum age 
48050-48053 Nonresidents 
48200 Children between ages of 6 and 18 years (compulsory full-time education) 
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act 
48850-48859 Educational placement of homeless and foster youth 
48645.5 Enrollment of former juvenile court school students 
49076 Access to records by persons without written consent or under judicial order 
49408 Information of use in emergencies 
49452.9 Health care coverage options and enrollment assistance 
49700-49704 Education of children of military families 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
120325-120380 Education and child care facility immunization requirements  
121475-121520 Tuberculosis tests for pupils students  
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
200 Promotion from kindergarten to first grade 
201 Admission to high school 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

Series 5000      Students          BP 5111(c) 
              
 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
6000-6075 School attendance immunization requirements 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 
552a Note Refusal to disclose social security number 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Plyler v. Doe, 457 U.S. 202 (1982) 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status, February 
2017 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, 
OFFICE OF FOR CIVIL RIGHTS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 
Fact Sheet: Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School 
Dear Colleague Letter,: School Enrollment Procedures, May 68, 20114 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice: https://www.justice.gov 
 
Adopted: 5-14-78 
Amended:  6-23-92, 9-17-02, 5-18-04, 5-15-12, 6-16-15, 3-21-2017 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:       B.5.f. APPROVE AMENDMENT TO BOARD POLICY AND 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 5111.1 – DISTRICT RESIDENCY 
– First Reading  

             
 
ISSUE: Should the Board of Education approve the proposed amendment to Board Policy 

and Administrative Regulation 5111.1 – District Residency? 
 
BACKGROUND: Policy Updated to add language to allow all children equal access to education, 

regardless of immigration status. Administrative Regulation updated to reflect 
NEW LAW (SB 1455, 2016) which establishes residency within the district for 
enrollment purposes to students whose parent/guardian is transferred or pending 
transfer into a military installation within district boundaries. Policy also reflects 
NEW LAW (AB 2537, 2016) which indefinitely extends district authority to 
grant Allen Bill transfers for students whose parent/guardian is employed within 
district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school week. Board 
Policy 5111.1 is being submitted with recommended changes from CSBA.   

 
ALTERNATIVES: 1.   Approve the amendment to Board Policy 5111.1 – District Residency. 
 2. Do not amend Board Policy 5111.1 – District Residency. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval of Alternative #1. 
 
     Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
            
     Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
     Superintendent 
 
 
Board Action: On motion of ______________, seconded by ________________, the Board of Education: 
 
VOTE: AYES NOES ABSTAIN ABSENT 
Hazelton         
Helfstein         
Laifman         
Rosen         
Ross         
Student Rep.         



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

	
Series 5000      Students       BP 5111.1(a) 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
District Residency 
 
The Governing Board desires to admit all students who reside within district boundaries or who 
fulfill the district residency requirements through other means as allowed by law. The 
Superintendent or designee shall develop procedures to facilitate the receipt and verification of 
students' proof of residency. 
 
(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually notify parents/guardians of all existing attendance 
options available in the district, including, but not limited to, all options for meeting residency 
requirements for school attendance. (Education Code 48980) 
 
(cf. 5116.1 - Intradistrict Open Enrollment) 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall require parents/guardians to provide documentation of the 
student's residency upon admission to a district school. A copy of the document or written 
statement offered as verification of residency shall be maintained in the student's mandatory 
permanent record. (5 CCR 432) 
 
(cf. 5111 - Admission) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
When establishing a student's residency for enrollment purposes, the Superintendent or designee 
shall not inquire into a student's citizenship or immigration status. 
 
A student's enrollment may be denied when the submitted documentation is insufficient to 
establish district residency. In any such case, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the 
parent/guardian in writing, including specific reasons for the denial. 
 
Investigation of Residency 
 
When the Superintendent or designee reasonably believes that a student's parent/guardian has 
provided false or unreliable evidence of residency, he/she may make reasonable efforts to 
determine that the student meets district residency requirements. An investigation may be 
initiated when the Superintendent or designee is able to identify specific, articulable facts 
supporting the belief that the parent/guardian has provided false or unreliable evidence of 
residency. (Education Code 48204.1, 48204.2) 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

	
Series 5000      Students       BP 5111.1(b) 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
The Superintendent or designee may assign a trained district employee to conduct the 
investigation. The investigation may include the examination of records, including public 
records, and/or interviews of persons who may have knowledge of the student's residency. 
 
If necessary, the Superintendent or designee may employ the services of a private investigator to 
conduct the investigation. Before hiring a private investigator, the Superintendent or designee 
shall make other reasonable efforts to determine whether the student resides in the district. 
(Education Code 48204.2) 
 
The investigation shall not include the surreptitious collection of photographic or videographic 
images of persons or places subject to the investigation. However, the use of technology is not 
prohibited if done in open and public view. (Education Code 48204.2) 
 
Any employee or contractor engaged in the investigation shall truthfully identify himself/herself 
as an investigator to individuals contacted or interviewed during the course of the investigation. 
(Education Code 48204.2) 
 
Appeal of Enrollment Denial 
 
If the Superintendent or designee, upon investigation, determines that a student does not meet 
district residency requirements and denies the student's enrollment in the district, he/she shall 
provide the student's parent/guardian an opportunity to appeal that determination. (Education 
Code 48204.2) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall send the student's parent/guardian written notice specifying 
the basis for the district's determination. This notice shall also inform the parent/guardian that 
he/she may, within 10 school days, appeal the decision and provide new evidence of residency. 
The burden shall be on the parent/guardian to show why the district's determination to deny 
enrollment should be overruled. (Education Code 48204.2) 
 
A student who is currently enrolled in the district shall be allowed to remain in attendance at 
his/her school pending the results of the appeal. A student who is not currently enrolled in the 
district shall not be permitted to attend any district school unless his/her appeal is successful. 
 
In an appeal to the Superintendent of a determination that district residency requirements were 
not met, the Superintendent shall review any evidence provided by the parent/guardian or 
obtained during the district's investigation and shall make a decision within 10 school days of 
receipt of the parent/guardian's request for the appeal. The Superintendent's decision shall be 
final. 
 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

	
Series 5000      Students       BP 5111.1(c) 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
Enrollment Not Requiring District Residency 
 
When approved by the Board and the appropriate agency, the district may enroll students from 
other countries who are in the United States on an F-1 visa or are participating in an international 
exchange program under the sponsorship of a government-approved agency. 
 
(cf. 5111.2 - Nonresident Foreign Students) 
(cf. 6145.6 - International Exchange) 
 
The district may enroll a nonresident student living in an adjoining state or foreign country in 
accordance with Education Code 48050-48052. 
 
District residency is not required for enrollment in a regional occupational center or program if 
there are openings in the program or class. (Education Code 52317) 
 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
220 Prohibition of discrimination 
35160.5 Intradistrict open enrollment 
35351 Assignment of students to particular schools 
46600-46611 Interdistrict attendance permits 
48050-48054 Nonresidents 
48200-48208 Compulsory education law, especially: 
48204 Residency requirements 
48204.1-48204.2 Evidence of residency 
48300-48316 Student attendance alternatives, school district of choice program 
48350-48361 Open Enrollment Act transfers 
48852.7 Education of homeless students; immediate enrollment 
48853.5 Education of foster youth; immediate enrollment 
48980 Notifications at beginning of term 
52317 Regional occupational program, admission of persons including nonresidents 
FAMILY CODE 
6550-6552 Caregivers 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
6205-6210 Confidentiality of residence for victims of domestic violence 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
432 Retention of student records 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Katz v. Los Gatos-Saratoga Joint Union High School District, (2004) 117 Cal.App.4th 47 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD POLICY 

 
Series 5000      Students       BP 5111.1(d) 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
 
Legal Guidance on Providing All Children Equal Access to Education, Regardless of Immigration Status, February 
2017 
Legal Guidance Regarding International Student Exchange Placement Organizations, April 2014 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION AND U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 
OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS JOINT PUBLICATIONS 
Fact Sheet: Information on the Rights of All Children to Enroll in School: Questions and Answers for States, School 
Districts and Parents, 2012 
Dear Colleague Letter: School Enrollment Procedures, May 8, 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Secretary of State, Safe at Home Program: http://www.sos.ca.gov/safeathome 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights: http://www2.ed.gov/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice: https://www.justice.gov 
 
Adopted: 2-16-16 
Amended:	3-21-17	
	



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
SERIES 5000               STUDENTS    AR 5111.1(a)  
              
  
District Residency 
 
Criteria for Residency 
 
A student shall be deemed to have complied with district residency requirements for enrollment 
in a district school if he/she meets any of the following criteria:   
 
1. The student's parents/guardians resides within district boundaries. (Education Code 48200) 
 
2. The student is placed within district boundaries in a regularly established licensed children's 

institution, a licensed foster home or a family home pursuant to a court-ordered commitment 
or placement.  (Education Code 48204) 

 
(cf. 6173.1 – Education for Foster Youth 
 
3. The student has been is admitted through the district's interdistrict attendance option, such as 

an interdistrict attendance agreement, “school district of choice” transfer, or Open 
Enrollment Act transfer.  (Education Code 46600, 48204, 48301, 48356) 

 
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)  
(cf. 5118 – Open Enrollment Act Transfers) 
 
4. The student is an emancipated minor residing within district boundaries.  (Education Code 

48204) 
 
5. The student lives with a caregiving adult within district boundaries and the caregiving adult 

submits an affidavit to that effect.  (Education Code 48204) 
 
6. The student resides in a state hospital located within district boundaries.  (Education Code 

48204) 
 
7. The student is confined to a hospital or other residential health facility within district 

boundaries for treatment of a temporary disability. (Education Code 48207) 
 
(cf. 6183 - Home and Hospital Instruction) 
 
8.  The student’s parent/guardian resides outside district boundaries but is employed within 

district boundaries and lives with the student at the place of employment for a minimum of 
three days during the school week. (Education Code 48204) 

 
9. The student's parent/guardian, while on active military duty pursuant to an official military 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
SERIES 5000               STUDENTS    AR 5111.1(b)  
              
 
 order, is transferred or is pending transfer to a military installation within district boundaries.  
(Education Code 48204.3) 
 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
 
Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment (Allen Bill Transfers) 
 
District residency status may be granted to a student if at least one of his/her parents/guardians is  
physically employed within district boundaries for a minimum of 10 hours during the school  
week.  No student seeking residency on this basis shall be denied enrollment based on race, 
ethnicity, sex, parental income, scholastic achievement, or any of the individual characteristics 
set forth in Education Code 220.  However, the Superintendent or designee may deny enrollment 
into the district if any of the following circumstances is present: (Education 48204)  
 

1. The additional cost of educating the student would exceed the amount of additional state 
aid received as a result of this transfer. 

 
2. Enrollment of the student would adversely affect the district’s court-ordered or voluntary 

desegregation plan as determined by the Governing Board. 
 

3. Other circumstances exist that are not arbitrary. 
 
Such circumstances may include, but are not limited to, overcrowding of school facilities at the 
relevant grade level. 
 
Once a student establishes residency on this basis, he/she shall not be required to reapply for 
enrollment in subsequent years.  The student may continue to attend school in the district through 
the highest grade level offered by the district if the parent/guardian so chooses and if at least one 
parent/guardian of the students continues to be physically employed by an employer situated 
within district boundaries, subject to the exceptions in items #1-3 above. (Education Code 
48204) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may deny a transfer out of the district of by a student whose 
parent/guardian is employed within the boundaries of another district if the difference between 
the number of students entering and exiting the district on the basis of parent/guardian 
employment exceeds the limits prescribed in Education Code 48204. (Education Code 48204) 
 
Proof of Residency 
 
Evidence of residency may be established by documentation showing the name and address of  



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
SERIES 5000               STUDENTS    AR 5111.1(c)  
              
 
the parent/guardian within the district, including, but not limited to, any of the following:  
(Education Code 48204.61) 
 
 1. Property tax payment receipts 
 2. Rental property contract, lease, or payment receipts 
 3. Utility service contract, statement, or payment receipts 
 4. Pay stub 
 5.  Voter registration 
 6.  Correspondence from a government agency 
 7.  Declaration of residency executed by the student's parent/guardian 
 8.  If the student is an unaccompanied youth as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a declaration of 

residency executed by the student 
 9.  If the student is residing in the home of a caregiving adult within district boundaries, an 

affidavit executed by the caregiving adult in accordance with Family Code 6552 
 
(cf. 5141 – Health Care and Emergencies) 
 
A parent/guardian seeking residency status on the basis of his/her employment within district 
boundaries shall submit proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to, a 
paycheck stub or letter from his/her employer listing a physical address within district 
boundaries. Such evidence shall also indicate the number of hours or days per school week that 
the parent/guardian is employed at that location. 
 
A parent/guardian who is transferred or pending transfer into a military installation within 
district boundaries shall provide proof of residence within 10 days after the published arrival date 
provided on official documentation. For this purpose, he/she may use as his/her address a 
temporary on-base billeting facility, a purchased or leased home or apartment, or federal 
government or public-private venture off-base military housing.  (Education Code 48204.3) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable effort to secure evidence that a homeless  
or foster youth resides within the district, including, but not limited to, a utility bill, letter from a 
homeless shelter, hotel/motel receipt, or affidavit from the student’s parent/guardian or other 
qualified adult relative. 
 
However, a Any homeless or foster youth or student who has had contact with the juvenile 
justice system shall be immediately enrolled in school even if he/she is unable to provide proof 
of residency. shall not be required to provide proof of residency as a condition of enrollment in 
district schools (Education Code 48645.5, 48853.5; 42 USC 11432) 
 
(cf. 6173 – Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 – Education for Foster Youth) 



OAK PARK UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION 

 
SERIES 5000               STUDENTS               AR 5111.1(d)  
            ______  
 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
A parent/guardian seeking residency status on the basis of his/her employment within district 
boundaries shall submit proof of the employment which may include, but not be limited to, a 
paycheck stub or letter from his/her employer listing a physical address within district 
boundaries.  Such evidence shall also indicate the number of hours or days per school week that 
the parent/guardian is employed at that location. 
 
Safe At Home/Confidential Address Program  
 
When a student or parent/guardian participating in the Safe at Home Program requests that the 
district use the substitute address designated by the Secretary of State, the Superintendent or 
designee may request the actual residence address for the purpose of establishing residency 
within district boundaries but shall use the substitute address for all future communications and  
correspondence and shall not include the actual address in the student’s file or any other public 
record. (Government Code 6206, 6207) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Adopted:  8-5-92 
Amended:  9-17-02, 7-04, 11-07, 11-11, 2-16-16, 03-21-17 
 



AdmSvs/Board/VII.1.1. Monthly Enrollment and Attendance Report 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: VII.1. MONTHLY ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT 
 INFORMATION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board receive and review a status report on District enrollment and 

attendance through Month 7 of the 2016-17 school year? 
 
BACKGROUND: As student enrollment and attendance plays a key roll in determining General 

Fund revenues, staffing, and expense, it is critical that the Board and 
Administration carefully monitor these factors in assessing both appropriate 
student support and the District’s financial position.  Accordingly, staff has 
prepared the following enrollment and attendance information through the end 
of the most recent reporting period.  To assist in this review, and for purposes 
of identifying trends in both enrollment and attendance, data from the same 
reporting period for the preceding year is also included for the Board’s 
information. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: None.  Information only. 
 
Prepared by: Shannan Kaesberg, Senior Accountant 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 



MONTHLY REPORT OF ENROLLMENT AND ADA

Board Meeting March 21, 2017

Page 1

 Site/

 Grade ENRL* ADA ENRL* ADA ENRL* ADA ENRL ADA ENRL ADA

 BES

K 96 91.24 94 92.00       95 92.53 95 91.06       95 92.36

1 73 70.09        73 71.11       72 70.32       72 69.53       72 69.29       

2 95 90.78        95 92.42       95 91.95       95 91.24       95 91.43       

3 107 101.57      103 100.94     103 101.37     103 100.71     104 101.50     

4 94 90.70        93 91.26       93 90.95       93 90.59       93 91.57       

5 126 122.02      124 121.53     125 123.25     125 122.05     125 121.56     

SDC 0 -            0 -           0 -           0 -           0 -           

Total 591 566.40      582 569.26     583 570.37     583 565.18     584 567.71     

ADA % ** 95.84% 97.81% 97.83% 96.94% 97.21%

 OHES

K 95 91.27        95 91.74       95 93.11       95 91.82       94 90.07       

1 73 69.85        71 69.95       70 69.00       71 69.47       72 70.21       

2 68 67.42        70 68.79       70 68.74       70 68.59       69 68.79       

3 82 80.62        84 82.63       84 82.47       83 81.24       83 80.21       

4 93 89.46        90 88.11       91 88.73       92 89.82       91 90.43       

5 92 89.68        93 91.78       92 91.00       92 90.47       92 89.79       

SDC 0 -            0 -           0 -           0 -           0 -           

Total 503 488.30      503 493.00     502 493.05     503 491.41     501 489.50     

ADA % ** 97.08% 98.01% 98.22% 97.70% 97.70%

 ROES

K 95 91.36        97 93.68       95 91.84       94 91.42       96 91.86       

1 98 91.85        93 88.63       95 92.63       95 93.18       96 92.71       

2 96 90.98        95 92.15       92 90.68       91 90.24       91 87.93       

3 106 103.27      106 103.16     106 104.32     105 103.18     106 104.00     

4 94 91.89        95 92.32       95 92.79       95 92.45       94 92.29       

5 122 117.63      119 117.11     120 116.42     122 119.06     122 119.28     

SDC 0 -            0 -           0 -           0 -           0 -           

Total 611 586.98      605 587.05     603 588.68     602 589.53     605 588.07     

ADA % ** 96.07% 97.03% 97.63% 97.93% 97.20%
 

 MCMS

6 362 354.18      363 359.37     366 360.32     364 356.94     363 355.64     

7 361 350.02      362 355.74     362 353.53     363 354.17     363 344.86     

8 380 367.10      381 372.00     379 369.89     380 370.89     379 367.57     

SDC 4 3.89          4 4.00         4 3.95         4 3.83         4 3.93         

Total 1107 1,075.19   1110 1,091.11  1111 1,087.69  1111 1,085.83  1109 1,072.00  

ADA % ** 97.13% 98.30% 97.90% 97.73% 96.66%

 OPHS

9 383 376.36      387 381.63     387 377.05     387 379.22     385 375.71     

10 387 380.40      398 389.63     396 383.63     395 383.33     395 380.36     

11 375 365.44      389 376.00     387 368.05     387 369.33     387 365.14     

12 342 325.82      345 331.58     344 327.85     345 329.44     345 321.93     

SDC 5 4.84          5 4.95         5 4.89         5 4.95         5 4.79         

Total 1492 1,452.86   1524 1,483.79  1519 1,461.47  1519 1,466.27  1517 1,447.93  

ADA % ** 97.38% 97.36% 96.21% 96.53% 95.45%

 OVHS

10-12 42 41.05        41 40.21       42 40.44       42 40.30       42 41.17       

ADA % ** 97.74% 98.07% 96.29% 95.95% 98.02%

 OPIS

K-12 220 212.80      211 197.95     220 211.95     221 218.17     221 217.93     

ADA % ** 96.73% 93.82% 96.34% 98.72% 98.61%

Other *** 6 4.18          1 1.00         4 0.68         6 0.89         6 2.65         

 TOTALS

K-12 4572 4,427.76   4577 4,463.37  4584 4,454.33  4587 4,457.58  4585 4,426.96  

ADA % ** 96.85% 97.52% 97.17% 97.18% 96.55%

YEAR TO DATE Month 1 Month 2 Month 3 Month 4

*Enrollment is as of the last day of the school month.

**% of Attendance is ratio of ADA generated during the period divided by last day enrollment.

***Other is Home Hospital, Non Public Schools, and Extended Year.

March 7, 2017



MONTHLY REPORT OF ENROLLMENT AND ADA

Board Meeting March 21, 2017

Page 2

 Site/

 Grade ENRL ADA ENRL ADA ENRL ADA ENRL ADA ENRL ADA ENRL ADA

 BES

K 95 88.26 96.00 91.00 96 91.78

1 72 68.26       73.00    69.84       73 70.33       

2 95 88.63       95.00    89.16       95 90.33       

3 104 99.32       107.00 103.00     107 103.61     

4 93 88.74       94.00    89.21       94 91.72       

5 126 121.58     126.00 122.00     126 121.79     

SDC -           0 -           0

Total 585 554.79     591 564.21     591 569.56     0 -         0 -         0 -         

ADA % ** 94.84% 95.47% 96.37% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 OHES

K 94 90.05       95.00    89.58       95 90.78       

1 73 70.53       73.00    69.26       73 70.39       

2 67 66.37       68.00    65.53       68 65.33       

3 82 80.47       82.00    77.89       82 78.78       

4 94 88.74       94.00    90.11       93 89.94       

5 92 87.95       92.00    87.84       92 88.61       

SDC 0 -           0 -           

Total 502 484.11     504 480.21     503 483.83     0 -         0 -         0 -         

ADA % ** 96.44% 95.28% 96.19% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 ROES

K 95 90.43       96.00    88.78       95 90.33       

1 96 91.42       97.00    91.00       98 93.78       

2 93 87.63       96.00    92.53       96 93.28       

3 107 103.42     107.00 103.00     106 101.50     

4 95 90.94       95.00    90.42       94 91.17       

5 122 116.58     122.00 117.74     122 117.88     

SDC 0 -           0

Total 608 580.42     613 583.47     611 587.94     0 -         0 -         0 -         

ADA % ** 95.46% 95.18% 96.23% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 MCMS

6 362 345.00     362.00 347.28     362 350.89     

7 361 341.79     363.00 348.33     361 349.06     

8 378 359.37     379.00 362.44     380 366.11     

SDC 4 3.68         4 3.89         4 3.94         

Total 1105 1,049.84  1108 1,061.94  1107 1,070.00  0 -         0 -         0 -         

ADA % ** 95.01% 95.84% 96.66% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 OPHS

9 381 377.42     384.00 371.94     383 369.78     

10 387 381.16     387.00 373.61     387 370.00     

11 376 366.68     376.00 358.00     375 352.78     

12 343 325.27     342.00 324.56     342 318.94     

SDC 5 4.84         5 5.00         5 4.44         

Total 1492 1,455.37  1494 1,433.11  1492 1,415.94  0 -         0 -         0 -         

ADA % ** 97.54% 95.92% 94.90% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 OVHS

10-12 39       41.43       43.00    40.29       42 40.88       

ADA % ** 106.23% 93.70% 97.33% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

 OPIS

K-12 218     219.84     217       212.33     220 217.22     

ADA % ** 100.84% 97.85% 98.74% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Other *** 6         2.81         6           3.78         6 4.18         
    

 TOTALS

K-12 4555 4,388.61  4576 4,379.34  4572 4,389.55  0 -         0 -         0 -         

ADA % ** 96.35% 95.70% 96.01% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10

*Enrollment is as of the last day of the school month.

**% of Attendance is ratio of ADA generated during the period divided by last day enrollment.

***Other is Home Hospital, Non Public Schools, and Extended Year.

March 7, 2017

mklauss
Line

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Rectangle



OAK PARK USD - ATTENDANCE

BES OHES ROES MCMS OPHS OVHS OPIS

Enroll 591 503 611 1107 1492 42 220

ADA 569.56 483.83 587.94 1070 1415.94 40.88 217.22

Percent 96.37% 96.19% 96.23% 96.66% 94.90% 97.33% 98.74%

PY % 94.99% 96.57% 96.21% 96.44% 95.35% 87.24% 97.32%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Month 7 - OPUSD 2016-17

Month
1

Month
2

Month
3

Month
4

Month
5

Month
6

Month
7

Month
8

Month
9

Month
10

Actual Enroll 4577 4584 4587 4585 4555 4576 4572

Actual ADA 4463.37 4454.33 4457.58 4426.96 4388.61 4379.34 4389.55

Percent 97.52% 97.17% 97.18% 96.55% 96.35% 95.70% 96.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Budget ADA 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01 4438.01

4200

4250

4300

4350

4400

4450

4500

4550

4600

4650

OPUSD - Total District Enrollment & ADA

Monthly Board Attendance Report

Month 7 - 02/06/2017 - 03/03/2017

Prepared 03/08/2017 sk

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Rectangle

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text
Prior Yr

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text

mklauss
Typewritten Text



AdmSvs/Board/VII.2.1. Monthly Cash Flow Report 03 21 17.docx 

TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: DR. ANTHONY W. KNIGHT, SUPERINTENDENT 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: VII.2. MONTHLY CASH FLOW REPORT 
 INFORMATION 
 
ISSUE: Shall the Board receive and review a status report on District’s actual and 

projected cash flow as of February 28th of the 2016-17 fiscal year? 
 
BACKGROUND: The State’s funding appropriation schedule for school districts is always 

challenging.  In his January 2017 budget proposal, citing the failure of State 
revenues to meet projections, Governor Brown has once again recommended 
deferring current year cash apportionments to the subsequent fiscal year, a 
common State practice during the Great Recession. Continuing its routine of 
the last several years, the Business Office produces a cash flow report each 
month as an ongoing tool to assist the both the Administration and Board in 
analyzing and managing the District’s cash and remaining cash-solvent.  This 
month’s report is included for the Board’s information and review. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: None - for information only. 
 
Prepared by: Barbara Dickerson, Director, Fiscal Services 
 Martin Klauss, Assistant Superintendent, Business and Administrative Services 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________
 Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 











TO:               MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FROM:         SARA AHL, PRINCIPAL, BROOKSIDE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

DATE:          MARCH 21, 2017 

SUBJECT:    X.1. MONTHLY BOARD REPORT  

 
SCHOOL EVENTS: 
 
Brookside supports a primary school in Ethiopia: Denise Keane, fourth-grade teacher, is traveling to 
Ethiopia in April to help open a primary school.  A leader in this effort will be visiting our school in mid-
March to describe the project in depth and answer questions.  Our students will be contributing to the 
effort by collecting basic school supplies to send with Mrs. Keane on her journey: 
https://imagine1day.org/project/irma-lyons-legacy-project/ 
 
With dirt floors, walls made of mud, and wooden logs standing in for chairs, the classroom environment 
in Filangur is far from conducive for learning. The open-air rooms lack basic learning necessities – 
students don’t even have desks on which to write. Infrastructure is not the only hurdle students face: their 
educational materials are inadequate, and their teachers lack the skills to engage them in quality learning. 

 

Spelling Bee: Our school winner, Harrison Forman, competed in the Ventura 
County competition last weekend.  Out of 121 school winners, he was one of 
only 34 to advance beyond the written test.  He was the only 3rd grader to 
advance and competed against 4th and 5th grade students all the way through 
the 7th round.  He represented our school very well by placing #8 overall.  We 
are very proud of him and recognized his achievement during a Monday 
Morning Assembly. 

 

Kindergarten Science Olympiad: Students were busy with a variety of hands-on learning activities 
throughout the day including: magnetism, force, gravity, wind, rainbows, and clouds. They rotated 
through the K classrooms throughout the day to participate in the various stations.   

                             

 

 

 

 

 



Odyssey of the Mind: Five Brookside teams competed in the regional competition on February 25 at 
Westlake High School.  We are proud of all of them for their dedication and hard work throughout the 
six-month period they spent creating a solution to their given problem.  Thanks to this program, these 
students built self-confidence, critical thinking skills, and presentation skills.  We are appreciative to the 
Oak Park Education Foundation for providing this opportunity! 

 

Seussical! For the first time, we have been working this year 
with Upstage Theatre Arts Schools to produce our school 
musical.  After months of preparation, our students put on an 
impressive performance of Seussical Jr. on March 2nd and 3rd 
(coinciding with Dr. Seuss’s birthday!).  We are extremely 
pleased with the process as well as the final product.   

 
 
 
 
 
Read Across America Week: Our library specialist and student 
council joined efforts to coordinate our Read Across America 
week, which included trivia in the library, a photo booth, a reading 
contest, and pajama day.   
 
 

SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL:   
Our School Site Council will meet on March 14th.   
  
CALENDAR HIGHLIGHTS:    
March 15                              Jog-A-Thon 
March 17   Santa Barbara Opera Lab visits the 4th Grade 
March 20-22   Ability Awareness Fair 
March 21   Second grade to Kidspace Museum  
March 23   Science Fair 
March 23   Family Science Night 
March 27,28,30               Fourth Grade to Olivas Adobe 
March 29   Fourth Grade Musical Performance 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
  
                                                        
      _________________________ 
                                                                         Anthony W. Knight, E.d.D.    
                  Superintendent 



TO:               MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 
FROM:         ERIK J. WARREN, PRINCIPAL, OAK HILLS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
DATE:          MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:    X.2. MONTHLY BOARD REPORT   
 
Volunteer Brunch 
As a small token of our deep appreciation for our many parent volunteers, the Oak Hills teachers 
put together a special Valentine’s Day celebration.  Each teacher invited the parents, grandparents, 
and others who regularly volunteer their time to help enhance the educational programs in their 
classroom.  The volunteers were treated to a delicious brunch while the teachers and staff had an 
opportunity to personally thank them for their service.  This annual event not only provides an 
opportunity to show our gratitude, it also enhances the overall community feeing at our school. 
 
 
Three Piggy Opera 
Our Kindergarten students are busy preparing for their performance of the Three Piggy Opera, with 
the careful guidance of our Kindergarten team and music teacher, Mr. Waldman.  There will be 
three dress rehearsals for the big buddies, and three evening performances followed by a cast party 
in each classroom.  This performance requires students to memorize several songs, movements and 
performance elements.  It is amazing to see how far our Kindergarteners have come so far. 
 
Interactive Symphony  
Our third graders visited the New West Symphony for a Symphonic Adventure.  In addition to 
listening to the performance, students were able to interact with the musicians and even had the 
opportunity to take the stage.  We are very fortunate to have weekly music class at Oak Hills, and 
experiences like this allow students to gain a deeper understanding of the instruments involved in 
the performance of classical music. 
 
Gold Rush Experience 
Our fourth graders traveled on a field trip back to 1849 to experience the California Gold Rush first 
hand.  They first met several characters from the era and learned the many roles Californians had 
at that time in our state’s history.  Each student worked to find gold, in an underground mine, a 
sluice box, or by panning.  Some struck it rich and others were not so lucky.  Many found that there 
were fortunes to be made buying and selling mining equipment or helping run the boarding house.  
The whole day provided wonderful hands-on experience for our students to really understand this 
important part of California’s rich history. 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
  
                                                        
      _________________________ 
                                                                         Anthony W. Knight, E.d.D.   
                  Superintendent 	
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 
FROM: JON A. DUIM, PRINCIPAL, RED OAK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: X.3   MONTHLY BOARD REPORT   
 
Mother/Son Bowling 
Our PFA sponsored a mother/son bowling night at the Simi Valley Bowl on February 11. 
This popular event sold out and the entire bowling alley was taken up by Red Oak 
bowlers for this event. 
 
Walk Through American History 
Our four third grade classes organized a simulated history museum featuring notable 
individuals from America’s past.  Each costumed wax figure (student) came to life to 
explain to their audience the importance of their life and the role they played in American 
history. Our MPR was used as the museum room.  This event occurred on Wednesday and 
Thursday, February 22 and 23 from 8:30 to 9:30 a.m.   
 
Sock Hop Dance 
Our PFA organized a father-daughter fifties style Sock Hop dance.  The event was held in 
the MPR on Friday, February 25th from 6:00 to 8:00.  The evening included 
commemorative photos, ice cream sundae bar, pizza, and salad available for purchase. 
 
 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
  
                                                        
      _________________________ 
                                                                        Anthony W. Knight, E.d.D.   
                 Superintendent  
 
 
 



TO: MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: BRAD BENIOFF, PRINCIPAL, MEDEA CREEK MIDDLE SCHOOL 
 
DATE: MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: X.4. MONTHLY SCHOOL REPORT 
  
 
MCMS Recent Distinctions: 
 

• 2017 National Geographic Geobee: Naren Krishnan, from Medea Creek Middle 
School has qualified to compete in the state level competition of the National Geographic 
Bee! The California State Bee will be held on Friday, March 31, 2017.  Congratulations 
Naren!  Thanks to Jessica Fadgen for facilitating the event. 

 
• Ventura County Middle School Honor Bands.  The following MCMS students 

auditioned in the middle school honor band, comprised of the top musicians from 
throughout Ventura County: 

 Kristen Chen - Flute 
 Shannon Chou - Flute 
 Samuel Forster - Bass Clarinet 
 Anoushka Jasuja - Flute 
 Jaya Murthy - Clarinet 
 Jonathan Qin - Alto Sax 
 Nathan Trux - Bari Sax 
             Thanks to OPUSD’s excellent music teachers: Elana Levine, Zach Borquez and Elayne   
 Roesner 

• Odyssey of the Mind: The MCMS team placed 1st in the recent competition and is 
moving on to State Finals on March 25th in Northern California! : 

 Lucy Anne Heine-Van Fossen   7th grade 
 Neha Jag           7th grade 
 Talia Parker        6th grade  
 Aidan Meeks      6th grade 
 Hana Chizzo       6th grade 
 Ananda Kinkaid  6th grade 
 Rachel Driggs     6th grade 
             Thanks to parent Grechen Van Fossen for coaching and guiding! 

• Science Olympiad:  Mr. Newell & Marta Graves took their Team and competed in their 
second Science Olympiad February 19th in Lancaster.    

• Math Counts:  Congratulations to Mr. Large and his terrific Math Counts Team. On 
Saturday, February 25th Medea Creek hosted Math Counts to compete in the annual 
Santa Barbara/Ventura County Math Counts Competition.  

 Team: Sriya Kalyan - (6th grade)  
 Kevin Ma - (7th grade)  
 Charlotte Nicks - (8th grade) -- Going to state finals at UC Irvine ( placed third overall in  
 our chapter competition.) 
 Sasha Xu - (8th grade) 
 Alternates: 
 Ganesh Koka - Male (7th) 
 Naren Krishnan - (6th) 



 Shreya Maddhali - (7th) 
 Anusha Rao -  (7th) 
 Prisha Suresh -  (7th) 
 Eddie Yang - (8th) 
 
7th grade Math Intervention: This 6 week afterschool addition to the supports offered by 
MCMS goes through this month. It is facilitated by Ms. Midiri, 7th /8th grade math teacher, and is 
focusing on homework completion, skills and understanding, asking questions and getting 
organized. 
  
District of Choice Enrollment First Week of March: Faculty Lounge at MCMS with Loretta 
Brown. 
 
OPHS 9th grade Counselor at MCMS: March 1st:  The Transition process of learning about 
the 9th grade program and choosing classes begins for MCMS 8th graders.  Thanks to Janet 
Svoboda. 
 
Where Everyone Belongs (WEB): Campus activities that engage and involve our students and 
foster campus connectedness continue on campus with lunch activities hosted by our 8th graders 
for the 6th graders. 
 
5th Grade Parent Orientation Night March 9th  6:30-7:30: MCMS Faculty and Staff will 
highlight key aspects of the 6th grade and begin the important transition process for students and 
parents. 
 
Cyber Safety Assembly March 10th:  The wonderful Lori Getz will be giving our 6th grade 
students and parents some excellent information about accessing the digital world with safety and 
effectiveness.  
 
Volleyball at Medea March 15th: Our 8th graders meet up with Lindero for their annual 
competition. 
 
Elective Choice Forms: 6th and 7th graders will be getting their Elective Choice Forms this 
month for the 2017-2018 school year. 
 
History Day at Medea March 23rd from 3:00-6:30: A record number of teams will display and 
discuss their Historical work and be judged on some impressive criteria. 
 
ASB Dance March 24th 5:30-8:00p.m. :  This is the last 6-8th grade dance of the year with food 
and fun for all.  There is a staggered entrance for this dance: 6th grade 5:30-7:30 and 7th/8th 6:00-
8:00. 
 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 _____________________________
_ Anthony W. Knight, Ed.D. 
 Superintendent 
 
 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

FROM: KEVIN BUCHANAN, PRINCIPAL, OAK PARK HIGH SCHOOL 
 

DATE:  MARCH 21, 2017 
 

SUBJECT: MONTHLY BOARD REPORT 
             
COURSE ADVISEMENT –  
During the week of February 22, 2017, Counselors met with students by grade level to discuss course 
selection procedures for the upcoming school year. That same week OPHS conducted its annual Course 
Advisement/Open House.  Parents and students met with teachers, counselors and administrators to help 
plan class selection for the 2017-2018 year. Materials were distributed to all returning students prior to the 
meeting so that parents and students can review options for classes next year.  Course selection on Naviance 
began on March 4th.  
 
FUTURE FRESHMEN COURSE ADVISEMENT - February 28 
All incoming freshmen and parents met with us at a separate advisement meeting on Monday February 28th. 
This meeting provided more detail and orientation information for students new to Oak Park High School. 
Our 9th grade counselor will meet with all grade 8 students at Medea at the beginning of March.  

 
Hair  - March 16 – 18, 2017  
 Directed by Allan Hunt this musical will feature costumes and sets and 
will feature dance and live music provided by the OPHS instrumental 
music students directed by Zach Borquez. Heidi Cissell is directing the 
musical numbers and the rehearsals are moving along smoothly. 
 

 
 
 

ACADEMIC DECATHLON 
OPHS Academic Decathlon team placed third in the Ventura County Competition. Congrats to the team 
and to the advisors Mrs. Robin Midiri and Jan Willis 
 
SOLAR PROJECT 
Plans and arrangements are in place to cope with the parking disruption caused by the installation of the 
OPHS Solar Arrays.  We have created a webpage with maps, directions, and videos to provide students 
and parents with instructions on parking, pick-up, and drop-off.  We are also sending all calls, PFA 
eBlasts, the Marquee, and bulletin announcements.  We will also be handing out flyers to drivers at drop 
off in the week leading up to the project’s commencement.  We have received permission to use Kanan 
Road for student permit parking and the LDS church lot for graduation parking. 
 
WINTER SPORTS 
BOYS BASKETBALL 
OPHS boys’ varsity basketball coached by teachers Aaron Shaw and Tim Chevalier had a terrific season 
winning the Coastal Canyon League Championship 
 
SPRING SPORTS 
Track, Boys volleyball, baseball, and softball are in preseason and as the teams 
play games they are preparing for a great showing in the league. The fields are in 
great shape and we have added a Freshman girls softball team. 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
  
      _________________________ 
                                                                        Anthony W. Knight, E.d.D.    
                  Superintendent 
 



TO:  MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
FROM: STEWART MCGUGAN, DIRECTOR OF ALTERNATIVE EDUCATION 
 
DATE:  MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: X.6. MONTHLY BOARD REPORT  
             

OAK VIEW HIGH SCHOOL  
 
STEP UP AWARDS 
We had our quarterly Step Up Awards assembly this past month and it was a great success.  These awards are for 
students who go beyond regular attendance and are awarded for their great, class participation, extra effort and work 
production. 
 
RAINBOW UMBRELLA / RENTAL AGREEMENT 
We were grateful to have Rainbow Umbrella present to our Oak View staff about ways to support LGBTQQIA 
students on our campuses.  Rainbow Umbrella outlines ways that individual schools could partner with them by 
taking advantage of the free services that they provide. In support of suicide prevention and mental health 
awareness, Rainbow Umbrella is available to work with Ventura County schools in all districts to help strengthen a 
climate of support for sexual and gender minorities on public school campuses. They offer a range of free services 
that schools, administrators, and faculty members may wish to employ on their campus. Rainbow Umbrella is 
available for professional development workshops, cultural sensitivity trainings, classroom guest speakers, and to 
assist with campus Gender and Sexuality Alliances (GSAs). They hope to provide support with research-based 
practices for supporting LGBTQQIA youth in K-12 education, as well as youth leadership training, guidance, 
materials, mental health resources, event planning, and connection with other local GSA's, and LGBTQQIA and 
allied youth. These services are free of charge and made possible through the VCBH - MSA grant for mental health 
and suicide prevention for LGBTQ+ youth, a highly vulnerable population. 
 
VIRTUAL REALITY GOGGLES  
Jessica Kudlacek, from the tech department, presented at our staff meeting about how to use the funny looking 
goggles.  Teachers love how students can lead other students through virtual tours and relevant current curriculum 
topics.  It is also a wonderful way to bring the advances in technology to our students. 
 
FIELD TRIPS 
Mrs. Liepman’s Psychology class was able to visit our local preschool and see practical applications of some of the 
material from theories they have learned in her class.  They also got a chance to go to the Belmont Village Senior 
living facility.  It was great for our students to see the younger children and senior adults to see the different in 
stages.   
 
MOORPARK COLLEGE 
To support OVHS, 12th graders transition from OVHS to Moorpark Community College.  OVHS seniors will met 
with a representative from the MCC outreach office to start and complete the online portion of their registration.  In 
addition, on Friday, March 24th, OVHS seniors will attend the Moorpark Community College preview day at MCC. 
At this time, students will learn about multiple community college resources including but not limited to the 
following: financial aide, transferring to a four-year University, and the MCC counseling office.  OVHS student 
will also tour the MCC campus, and meet individually with a MCC counselor. 
 
 
 



OAK PARK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL  
 
OSB 
High School OSB -  In high school OSB, we are working on our Casa Pacifica Event, which will be held on March 
15th. We will be making dream catchers, rock painting, food activities, decorating terra-cotta pots, photo booth and 
magic at the event. 
 
School OSB - In middle school OSB, we are also working on planning our stations for the Casa Pacifica event 
on March 15th.  For the event students made signs for each table (there will be 4 tables of activities), a food activity 
and dream catchers.  Our students are also collecting box tops and we continue to discuss other philanthropic 
activities to get ideas of what they would like to participate in to better our community.  
   
WATERSHED RESOURCE CENTER ARROYO BEACH FIELD TRIP 
Students will participate in activities to understand watersheds and how to protect them.  They explore sources of 
water pollution, solutions to pollution, and the effects of plastic debris on aquatic systems. The two-hour field trip 
includes taking action with a beach cleanup. 
 
STEM CELL RESEARCH 
Steven Sera, a former OPHS graduate and current PhD research student at UC Riverside, presented on the topic of 
current Stem Cell Research. He discussed current trends in the science of stem cell research, possible treatments 
and therapies as a result of findings, as well as the ethical implications concerning the use of pluripotent stem cells 
for research.  It was well attended by many of our OPIS students, predominately our Biology 10th graders.  
 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
  
                                                        
        _________________________ 
                                                                           Anthony W. Knight, E.d.D.   
                    Superintendent  
 
 
 
 



   
      
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
TO:               MEMBERS, BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 
FROM:         KIM GREGORCHUK, DIRECTOR, OAK PARK NEIGHBORHOOD SCHOOL  
 
DATE:          MARCH 21, 2017 
 
SUBJECT:    X.7. MONTHLY BOARD REPORT   

 

On our staff development day, February 17 th, the OPNS teachers and assistant teachers toured the Del Norte CDI 
Preschool at the El Rio Child Development Center.  The preschool is a model Early Childhool VC STEM school 
and eager to show off their center.  They use a hybrid of curriculums and philosophies:  A healthy dose of High 
Scope, some Reggio Inspired practices, Montessori independent tray tasks, and others. All of us were very 
impressed with the degree of teacher and child engagement, the classroom environment, the evidence of deep 
learnig in their long term projects, and the clear, simple documentation of the children’s learning. 
 
March is a big month for us!  We have our Snow Carnival happening on Saturday, March 4th from 10:00 am to 
2:00 pm, and preparations have been underway since September.  We have a dedicated core of parents who have 
worked tirelessly to make the carnival successful and profitable.  It will be difficult to top last year’s profit, but if 
anyone can, it is this team!  Now that the carnival is so near, our office space has become a storage space, as well 
as an assessment area for special needs students. 
Since a picture speaks one thousand words, I thought I would include two. 

 
We have 34 students moving on to DK or K, and all of our returning parents have registered for the 2017/2018 
school year.  We have opened enrollment to the community as of March 1st and hope to be full prior to the 
summer break.  
 
Please come by anytime, we love to have visitors.  The children are here from 9am to 1pm. 
 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
      _________________________ 
                                                                         Anthony W. Knight, E.d.D.     
                  Superintendent 

  


	A_Agenda 03_21_2017
	B.1.a. Minutes of Regular Board Meeting 2_21_2017
	B.1.c.1. Monthly PO Report 03 21 17
	B.1.c.2. Monthly PO Report 03 21 17
	B.1.d. Overnight OPUSD Odyssey of the Mind Team Brentwood 3.21.17
	B.1.e. Overnight FBLA Sacramento 3.21.17
	B.1.f. NOC Project 16-07F MCMS Garden 03 21 17
	B.2.a.1.  RESOLUTION NO. 17-10 TRAN 2017-18 03 21 17
	B.2.a.2. CSBA TRAN Program Summary and Process 03 21 17
	B.2.b.1. RSRPD Joint Use Agreement 03 21 17
	B.2.b.2. OPUSD RSRPD Agreement 2017 - 2020 Proposed 03 13 17
	B.2.c. Second Interim Report 2016-17 03 21 17
	B.2.d. Safe School Plans 03 21 17
	B.2.e. Award RFP Architectural Services Measure S 03 21 17 
	B.2.f.1. Change Order 1 Proj 17-01S PFMG 03 21 17
	B.2.f.2. Proj 17-01 S Change Order 1 03 21 17
	B.2.g.1. DSA Testing _ Inspection Services Agreement 03 21 17
	B.2.g.2. Proj 17-01S NV5 DSA Testing Services Proposal 02 23 17
	B.2.h.1. DSA Inspector of Record Services Agreement 03 21 17
	B.2.h.2. Proj 17-01S Kenco DSA Inspection Proposal 02 23 17
	B.2.i.1. Measure R Proj 14-16R Districtwide Signage OVHS OPIS DO  03 21 17
	B.2.i.2. Proj 14-16R Contractor Proposals03 21 17
	B.2.j.1. WAGS Agreement Amendment 03 21 17
	B.2.j.2. Oak View WAGS Agreement - Final 03.14.17
	B.2.k.1. Measure R Proj 17-04R Sidewalk Safety Repairs BES 03 21 17
	B.2.k.2.Proj 17-04R BES Sidewalk Repair Hughes Proposal 03 02 17
	B.2.l.1. Measure R Proj 17-05R Sidewalk Safety Repairs OHES 03 21 17
	B.2.l.2. Proj 17-05R OHES Sidewalk Repair Hughes Proposal 03 02 17
	B.2.m.1. Measure C6 Purchase Emergency Radio System 03 21 17
	b.2.m.2. Proj 17-06C Emergency Radios Ryan Communication Quote 03 10 17
	B.2.n. Donations 03_21_2017
	B.3.a.1. Contract Non Public School Services Board Cover Sheet - #13-16-17
	B.3.a.2. Contract 13   16-17   The Help Group - Summit View
	B.3.b.1. Contract Non Public School Services Board Cover Sheet - #14-16-17
	B.3.b.2. Contract  14  16-17 Inntermountain
	B.4.a.1.  OPHS New Course Aerospace Engineering 3-21-17
	B.4.a.2. Aerospace Engineering Course Outline
	B.4.b. Coversheet Single Site Plans 2016-2017_E
	B.4.c.  Coversheet SARCs 2015-2016
	B.5.a.1. Amendment BB 9240 Board Training 03.21.17
	B.5.a.2. BB9240 Board Training for review 03_21_2017
	B.5.b.1. Adopt New Administrative Regulation 3311.2 - Lease-Leaseback Contracts 3_21_17
	B.5.b.2. AR3311.2 Lease-Leaseback Contract 03_21_2017
	B.5.c.1. Adopt New Administrative Regulation 3311.3 - Design-Build Contracts 3_21_17
	B.5.c.2. AR3311.3 Design-Build Contracts 03_21_2017
	B.5.d.1. Adopt New Administrative Regulation 3311.4 - Procurement of technological equipment 3_21_17
	B.5.d.2. AR3311.4 Procurement Of Technological Equipment 03_21_2017
	B.5.e.1. Amendment Bd Pol 5111 Admission 3_21_2017
	B.5.e.2. BP5111 Admission for review 3-21-2017
	B.5.f.1. Amendment Bd Pol 5111.1 District Residency 3_21_2017
	B.5.f.2. BP5111.1 District Residency for review 3_21_17
	B.5.f.3. AR5111.1 District Residency 3_21_17
	VII.1.1. Monthly Enrollment and Attendance Report 03 21 17
	VII.1.2. 16 17  Board Attendance SK Month 7
	VII.2.1. Monthly Cash Flow Report 03 21 17
	VII.2.2. Monthly Cash Flow 03 21 17
	X.1. BES Board Report March 21.2017
	X.2. OHES Board Report March 2017
	X.3. ROES Board Report March 2017
	X.4. MCMS March Board Report 2017
	X.5. OPHS Board Report March 2017
	X.6. OPIS_OVHS Board Report March 2017.new
	X.7. OPNS March Report 2017



